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Mail Stop 3-2

Washington, D.C. 20549-0302
U.S.A.

SEC FILE NO. 82-3853

Ladies and Gentlemen:

PROCESSED

. g
Re: K. Wah International Holdings Limited MAR 3 1 2005 k
Information Furnished Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) TAOMSON
under the Securities Exchange Act FINANCIAL

On behalf of K. Wah International Holdings Limited (the "Company"), S.E.C.
File No. 82-3853, copies of the following documents are submitted to you in order to
maintain the Company's exemption from Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (the "Act") pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Act:

1. The Company’s announcement regarding re-designation of director and
change of secretary and authorized representative of the Company, dated March 3,
2005, published (in English language) in South China Morning Post, and published
(in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic Times and Hong Kong Economic
Journal, all on March 4, 2005;

2. The Company’s announcement of annual results for the year ended
December 31, 2004, dated March 3, 2005, published (in English language) in South
China Morning Post, and published (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic
Times and Hong Kong Economic Journal, all on March 4, 2005; J .
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3. The Company’s circular regarding discloseable transaction -
establishment of a joint venture for property development and investment in PRC,
dated February 26, 2005;

4. The Company’s announcement regarding discloseable transaction —
establishment of a joint venture for property development and investment in PRC,
dated February 4, 2005; published (in English language) in South China Morning
Post, and published (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic Times, both on
February 7, 2005;

5. The Company’s joint clarification announcement regarding update and
resumption of trading, dated February 2, 2005, published (in English language) in
South China Morning Post and The Standard and published (in Chinese language) in
Hong Kong Economic Times and Hong Kong Economic Journal, all on February 3,
2005;

6. The Company’s joint announcement, dated January 20, 20095,
published (in English language) in The Standard and South China Morning Post and
published (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic Times and Hong Kong
Economic Journal, all on January 21, 2005;

7. The Company’s announcement regarding an independent non executive
director of the Company, dated January 12, 2005, published (in English language) in
South China Morning Post and published (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong
Economic Times, both on January 13, 2005;

8.  The Company’s joint clarification announcement regarding unusual
movement in price and trading volume, dated January 11, 2005, published (in English
language) in Scuth China Morning Post and The Standard and published (in Chinese
language) in Hong Kong Economic Times and Hong Kong Economic Journal, all on
January 12, 2005;

9. The Company’s joint clarification announcement, dated January 6,
2005, published (in English language) in The Standard and published (in Chinese
language) in Hong Kong Economic Times, both on January 7, 2005;

10. The Company’s announcement regarding unusual volume movement,
dated December 17, 2004, published (in English language) in South China Moming
Post and published (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic Times, both on
December 20, 2004;
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I1. The Company’s joint clarification announcement, dated October 14,
2004, published (in English language) in The Standard and South China Morning Post
and published (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic Times and Hong Kong
Economic Journal, all on October 15, 2004,

12. The Company’s anncuncement regarding interim scrip dividend with
cash option for the six months ended June 30, 2004, dated October 11, 2004,
published (in English language) in The Standard, and published (in Chinese language)
in Hong Kong Economic Times, both on October 12, 2004;

13. The Company's joint clarification announcement regarding the recent
increases in the price and trading volume of the shares of KWCM, dated October 7,
2004, published (in English language) in The Standard, and published (in Chinese
language) in Hong Kong Economic Times, both on October 8, 2004; and

14, The Company's circular regarding interim scrip dividend with cash
option for the six months ended June 30, 2004, dated October 4, 2004; and

15. The Company’s interim report 2004, dated September 8, 2004.

The parts of the enclosed documents that are in Chinese substantially restate
the information appearing elsewhere in English.

We would appreciate your acknowledging receipt of these materials by
stamping and returning the enclosed copy of this letter. A self-addressed, stamped
envelope is enclosed for your convenience.

Very truly yours,

Simon Luk

Enclosures

cc: K. Wah International Holdings Limited

h:\dlai\adr\1906310001\34sec.doc
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‘Hong Kong, 3rd I\/Iarch 2005

K WAH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda. with lrmrted habrlrty)
(Stock Code: 173)

RE DESIGNATION OF DIRECTOR
AND.
© . CHANGE OF SECRETARY S
AND AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE o

Re-des) gnatﬂon oI Dlrector

'The Board of Directors (the “Board) of K. Wah International Holdmgs Lzmlted (Ihe ‘Company ) announces'
that Dr.-Philip Wong Kin Hang has been. re-designated from an Independent Non- executive Dtrector toa Non- ’

executive Director of the Company with- effect: from 3rd March 2005.

Dr. Wong, aged 72, has been an Independent Non-axecutive Director of the Company since 1989 and is re- -

designated as a Non-Exacutive Director with effect from 3rd March 2005. He is-a consultant. of a Hong Kong
tirm of solicitors and is also a Notary Public and.a China Appointed Attesting Officer. in-addition, Dr. Wong.is

_a director of Raymond Industrial erned a company hsted on The- Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Lm‘uted

(the “Stock Exchange”).

- Save as disclosed above and apart from being a non- execuﬂve director of the Company; he did not hold any
directorship in any fisted public company in the past three years and does not hold any ‘other positions ‘with’

the Company or any of (ts subSIdlanes

There is no service contract between the Company and Dr. Wong The amount of emolumems payabie to Dr.

- Wong comprises an annual director's fee which will be proposed by the Board and approved by shareholders’

of the Company. at the subsequent 'year's annual general meeting. His emoluments afe. determined by
reference o his duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company's performance.and profitability,
the Company's remuneratien policy and the market benchmark

Dr. Wong is an investor in and a-director of a non- hsted investment in whlch a Iamlly trust establlshed by the
Chairman of the Company has, ultimately a material interest. Apart from this and apart from his directorship in

“the Company; Dr. Wong does not have any relationships - with any Directors, senior management. nr'.‘

substantial .or controlling shareholders of the Company , - N
As at the date of this announcement, he has interests-in 300,000 share optlons of the Company Save as
disclosed above, Dr. Wohg has né interest in the shares of’ the Company within the meaning of Part XV ot
the Securmos and’Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Heng Kong,

Save as drsclosed above the Board is not aware of any other information which shouId be brought to the

attention of. the shareholders’ of the Company in reIatlon to the re- des:gnatron ot Dr. Wong as a Non-
executive Director.of the* Company

Change of Secretary and. Authorized Representatlve

.The Board. announces that Mr. Steven Tong Kui Nam has resigned as the Secretary and ceased to be.an B

authorized represeniative of the Company (“authorized representativs’) under Rule- 3,05. of the Rules
Coverning the L\stmg of Securities on the Stock Exchange with effect from 3rd March 2005

Mr. Tong has conﬁrmed that there is no disagreement with the Board .and that there is .no other maner
relating to hrs reslgnatlon that needs to be brought to the attention of the-shareholders of the Company.

"The Board further announces that Mr. Seaman-Kwok Siu Man has been appointed the Secretary and an

authorized representative of theé Company with effect from 3rd March 2005. Mr. Kwok holds a Post-Graduate
Diploma in Laws from the Manchester Metropolitari University. jn- the United Kingdom (the *UK") and a
Bachelor-of Arts. (Honours) Degree in Accountancy from The Heng Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
fellow of The Institute of Financial Accountants in the UK, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries And
Administrators in the UK and The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secrataries.

The Board wou!d like to express its gratitude fo Mr. Tong for his contribution to:the Group dunng the past -

years and also axpresses its warm welcome to Mr. Kwok for his appointment. .

As at the date of this announcement the executive directors of the Company are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr.
Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Lennon Lun Tsan Kau, Mr. Eddie Hui Ki On, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung and Ms.
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu; the non-executive drrectors are Mr. Michae! Leung Man.Kin and Dr. Philip Wong Kin
Hang; and the independent non-executive directors are Sir David Akers-Jones, Dr. Leo Les Tung Hai, Dr.

" Robin Chan Yau Hing, Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun and Mr. Robert George N|eld

By Order of the Board
Francis Lul Yiu Tung
Managing Director

P U P
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in doubt as o any aspect of this C|rcular yo should consult a stockbroker or other
registered déalec. irt’ “securities, bank manager “50. ,"profeSSIonaI accountant or other
professional adviser.” e

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in K. Wah International Holdings Limited, you
should at once hand this circular to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank, stockbroker or
other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser
or transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this

circular, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims

_any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this circular. ;
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the

following meanings:

“Articles of Association”

“Board”

“Capital increase Agreement”

“Company”

“connected person(s)”

“Director(s)”
“Group”
“HK$”

“Hong Kong”

“Joint Venture Company”

the sino-foreign equity joint venture articles of
association dated 31 January 2005 entered into between
the Joint Venture Parties in relation to, among other
things, the increase in registered capital of the PRC
Company and the transformation of the PRC Company
into and the establishment of the Joint Venture Company

the board of Directors

the capital increase agreement dated 31 January 2005
entered into between the Joint Venture Parties and the
PRC Company in relation to, among other things, the
increase in registered capital of the PRC Company and
the transformation of the PRC Company into and the
establishment of the Joint Venture Company

K. Wah International Holdings Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and the shares of which are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange

has the meaning as ascribed to the expression under the
Listing Rules

the director(s) of the Company

the Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Shanghai Baosteelland Co., Ltd (LisT#tESRAH)
(to be renamed as “Shanghai Baoland Co., Ltd.
(LEEHELEEAT)"), a sino-foreign equity joint venture
company to be transformed from the PRC Company and
established pursuant to the Joint Venture Contract, the
Capital Increase Agreement and the Articles of
Association and the equity interest in which to be held by
Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation as to 41.5%, the
Company as to 41.5%, Mitsubishi as to 15% and Tokyu
as {0 2% respectively




DEFINITIONS

“Joint Venture Contract”

“Joint Venture Parties” -

“KWCM”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Mitsubishi”

“PRC"

“PRC Company”

the sino-foreign equity joint venture contract dated 31
January 2005 entered into between the Joint Venture
Parties in relation to, among other things, the increase in
registered capital of the PRC Company and the
transformation of the PRC Company into and the
establishment of the Joint Venture Company

Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation, the Company,
Mitsubishi and Tokyu

K. Wah Construction Materials Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong ' Kong with limited liability, the
shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange and an indirect 65.8% owned subsidiary of the
Company

23 February 2005, being the latest practicable date prior
to the printing of this circular for ascertaining certain
information referred to herein '

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (as amended from time to time)

Mitsubishi Corporation (=ZmEfkgit), a company
incorporated in Japan and listed on Tokyo Stock
Exchange

the People’s Republic of China

Shanghai Baosteeiland Co., Ltd. (bEE#HHERRAR), a
state-owned limited company and wholly-owned by
Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation immediately prior
to the entering of the Joint Venture Contract, Capital
increase Agreement and the Articles of Association,
which will be transformed into the Joint Venture Company
pursuant to the Joint Venture Contract, the Capital
Increase Agreement and the Articles of Association. It
was incorporated on 17 February 1993 in Shanghai,
the PRGC under the name of Shanghai Baosteel Real
Estate  Operation and Development Company
(LEEHEHEREMERAT) and its name was changed to
Shanghai Baosteelland Co., Ltd. ( bis@iisERRAR) on 1
July 2002.

It is an investment holding company and is principally
engaged in the business of property development and
investment in the PRC.
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“RMB” Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
“SFQ” Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)
“Shanghai Bao Jia” Shanghai Bao Jia Concrete Co. Ltd.,, a company
incorporated in Shanghai, the PRC
“Shanghai Baosteel Group Shanghai Baosteel Group Company (-EWHEEAHR), a
Corporation” state-owned corporation incorporated in the PRC and the

sole shareholder of the PRC Company

“Shareholder(s)” the shareholder(s) of the Company

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“Tokyu” Tokyu Land Corporation (HExF#EHkXEHt), a company
incorporated in Japan and listed on Tokyo Stock
Exchange

“Transaction” the transaction under the Joint Venture Contract, the

' Capital Increase Agreement and the Articles of

Association

For the purpose of this circular,
(1) the exchange rate of RMB1.05=HK$1 has been used;

(2) no representation is made by the Group that any amounts in RMB could have been or
could be converted at the above rate or at any other rates or at alf; and

(3) certain English translations of Chinese names or words in this circular are included for
information purpose only, and should not be relied upon as the official translation of such
Chinese names or words.
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26 February 2005

To the Shareholders,

Dear Sir or Madam,

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION
ESTABLISHMENT OF A JOINT VENTURE
FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT IN PRC

1. INTRODUCTION

On 4 February 2005, the Board announced that on 31 January 2005, the Company
entered into (a) the Joint Venture Contract with Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation,
Mitsubishi and Tokyu; and (b) the Capital Increase Agreement with Shanghai Baosteel Group
Corporation, Mitsubishi, Tokyu and the PRC Company, in connection with, among other things,
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the increase in registered capital of the PRC Company and the transformation of the PRC
Company into and the establishment of the Joint Venture Company which will be renamed as
“Shanghai Baoland Co., Lid. (bigmiEZAERAH)". The Articles of Associatlion were also
entered into among the Joint Venture Parties to reflect the terms of the Joint Venture Contract
and the Capital increase Agreement. The Transaction constituted a discloseable transaction
for the Company under the Listing Rules. The purpose of this circular is to provide you with
details of the Transaction.

2. JOINT VENTURE CONTRACT

A summary of the principal terms of the Joint Venture Contract is as follows:
Date: 31 January 2005

Parties: (1) Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation;
(2) the Company;
(3) Mitsubishi; and

(4) Tokyu.

Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation is beneficially
interested in 42% equity of Shanghai Bao Jia, which is a
50% owned jointly controlled entity of KWCM. Shanghai
Bao Jia is accounted for under the equity method where
the Group’s share of results will be included in the
consolidated profit and loss statement and the Group’s
share of net assets will be included in the consolidated
balance sheet. Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation is
neither a connected person of KWCM nor of the
Company by virtue of its 42% interest in Shanghai Bao
Jia as it is not a subsidiary (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of KWCM or the Company and it does not fall
within the definition of a “connected person” under the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed herein and to the best of the
knowledge, information and belief of the Directors and
having made all reasonable enquiries, Shanghai
Baosteel Group Corporation, Mitsubishi and Tokyu and
their respective ultimate beneficial owners are third
parties independent of the Company and its subsidiaries
and connected persons of the Company.
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Business objective of the
Joint Venture Company:

Total investment amount
and registered capital of
the Joint Venture
Company:

The Joint Venture Company shall be established for the
principal purpose of property development and
investment in Shanghai and Beijing of the PRC.

The total investiment amount of the Joint Venture
Company is RMB2,100,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,000,000,000), which includes the
registered capital of RMB717,674,797 (equivalent to
approximately HK$683,499,807).

Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation is treated as
having contributed to 41.5% (equivalent to
RMB297,835,041 or approximately HK$283,652,420) of
the registered capital of the Joint Venture Company by
virtue of the original and entire equity interests in the
PRC Company in the sum of RMB297,835,041
{equivalent to approximately HK$283,652,420) owned by
it on the date of the Joint Venture Contract. The
remaining registered capital of the Joint Venture
Company will be funded in cash as to 41.5% (equivalent
to RMB297,835,041 or approximately HK$283,652,420)
by the Company, as to 15% (equivalent to
RMB107,651,219 or approximately HK$102,524,970) by
Mitsubishi and as to 2% (equivalent to RMB14,353,496 or
approximately HK$13,669,996) by Tokyu.

The Company, Mitsubishi and Tokyu will further
contribute RMB146,848,876.60, RMB53,077,907.84 and
RMB7,077,054.25 respectively (equivalent to
approximately HK$139,856,073, HK$50,550,388 and
HK$6,740,052) as premium of the registered capital.
Such premium is to be satisfied in cash.

{Please refer to the section headed “Capital Increase
Agreement” for details of the contributions in the
registered capital of the Joint Venture Company.)

Any further funding required by the Joint Venture
Company will be funded by bank or other financial
borrowings to be arranged by the Joint Venture
Company. Pursuant to the Joint Venture Contract, the
Joint Venture Parties are not required to provide further
finance or guarantee for outside borrowings of the Joint
Venture Company.
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Deadline for payment of
registered capital and
the premium
contributions by the
Company, Mitsubishi
and Tokyu:

Board composition of the

Joint Venture Company:

Profit sharing ratio:

Duration of the Joint
Venture Company:

Taking Effect:

Within 30 days of the following events (whichever is the
latest):

(1) the issue of the business licence of the Joint
Venture Company;

(2) the completion of the registration of the change of
the capital structure of the Joint Venture Company
as follows: 41.5% by Shanghai Baosteel Group
Corporation, 41.5% by the Company, 15% by
Mitsubishi and 2% by Tokyu; and

(3) the completion of the registration of the change of
the board of directors of the Joint Venture Company
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Joint Venture Contract.

The board of directors of the Joint Venture Company
shall consist of six directors. Shanghai Baosteel Group
Corporation and the Company shall each be entitied to
appoint two directors whilst Mitsubishi shall be entitied to
appoint one director. The remaining director shall be the
executive director of the Joint Venture Company. The
appointments of the chairman and the executive director
of the Joint Venture Company shall be elected by a -
resolution of the board of directors of the Joint Venture
Company with the approval of over two-thirds of the
directors of the Joint Venture Company.

The net profit after deducting tax and statutory reserves
of the Joint Venture Company will be shared by the
shareholders of the Joint Venture Company in proportion
to their entitlement of the registered capital of the Joint
Venture Company, namely 41.5% by Shanghai Baosteel
Group Corporation, 41.5% by the Company, 15% by
Mitsubishi and 2% by Tokyu.

15 years from the date of the issue of the business
licence of the Joint Venture Company (which is expected
to be within three months from 31 January 2005, being
the date of the execution of the Joint Venture Contract
and the Capital Increase Agreement).

The Joint Venture Contract will take effect upon the (a)
approval from the relevant PRC government authorities;
(b) internal approval from and due execution by the
respective Joint Venture Parties; and (c) Capital Increase
Agreement taking effect.
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CAPITAL INCREASE AGREEMENT

A summary of the principal terms of the Capital Increase Agreement is as follows:

Date:

Parties:

Registered capital of the
PRC Company:

Sole shareholder of the
PRC Company:

Registered capital of the
Joint Venture Company
after increasing the
registered capital of the
PRC Company and
transforming the same
into the Joint Venture
Company:

Contributions in the
registered capital of the

Joint Venture Company:

31 January 2005

(1) Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation;
(2) the Company;

(3) Mitsubishi;

(4) Tokyu; and

(5) the PRC Company. The Directors confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge, information and belief
and having made all reasonable enquiries, the PRC
Company is a limited company wholly-owned by
Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation, a state-
owned corporation.

RMB 297,835,041 (equivalent to approximately
HK$283,652,420)

Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation

RMB 717,674,797 (equivalent to approximately
HK$683,499,807)

Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation is treated as
having  contributed to 41.5% (equivalent to
RMB297,835,041 or approximately HK$283,652,420) of
the registered capital of the Joint Venture Company by
virtue of the original and entire equity interests in the
PRC Company owned by it on the date of the Joint
Venture Contract.

The remaining registered capital of the Joint Venture
Company will be funded in cash as to 41.5% (equivalent
to RMB297,835,041 or approximately HK$283,652,420)
by the Company, as to 15% (equivalent to
RMB107,651,219 or approximately HK$102,524,970) by
Mitsubishi and as to 2% (equivalent to RMB 14,353,496 or
approximately HK$13,669,996) by Tokyu.
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4. SOURCE OF FUNDING

The invesiment of the Company in the Joint Venture Company will be funded by the
Company’s internal rescurces. Having considered the present working capital requirements of
the Company including the investment in the Joint Venture Company, the Directors confirm
that there will be no material adverse impact on the cash flow and gearing ratio of the
Company. The Joint Venture Company is expected to be classified as a jointly controlled entity
in the consolidated accounts of the Company.

5. INFORMATION OF SHANGHAI BAOSTEEL GROUP CORPORATION, THE COMPANY,
MITSUBISHI AND TOKYU

Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation is a state-owned corporation. The principal
businesses of Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation include steel manufacturing and land
development in PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal activities of the
principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities of the Company are property investment
and development in Hong Kong and mainiand China as well as investment holding in KWCM.
The principal activities of the principal associated companies of the Company are also
property investment and development in Hong Kong and mainiand China. KWCM is an
investment holding company and the principal activities of the principai subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities of KWCM are the manufacture, sale and distribution of construction
materials in Hong Kong and mainland China. The principal activities of the principal associated
companies of KWCM are also the manufacture, sale and distribution of construction materials
in Hong Kong and mainland China. The jointly controlled entities and the associated
companies of the Company and KWCM are accounted for under the equity method where the
Group’s share of results will be included in the consolidated profit and loss statement and the
Group’s share of net assets will be included in the consolidated balance sheet.

Mitsubishi is a company listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange. The principal businesses of
Mitsubishi include business in energy, metal, machinery, chemical and living essential and
investment in fand development.

Tokyu is a company listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange. The principal business of Tokyu is
investment in land development.

6. INFORMATION OF THE PRC COMPANY AND THE JOINT VENTURE COMPANY

The PRC Company is a state-owned limited company and wholly-owned by Shanghai
Baosteel Group Corporation, a state owned corporation, immediately prior to the entering of
the Joint Venture Contract, Capital Increase Agreement and the Articles of Association. It was
incorporated on 17 February 1993 in Shanghai, the PRC under the name of Shanghai Baosteel
Real Estate Operation and Development Company (-EE#HEMELSEHEAT) and its name was
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changed to Shanghai Baosteelland Co., Ltd. (E¥E#tEARAT) on 1 July 2002. As far as the
Directors are aware, the capital originally contributed by Shanghai Baosteel Group
Corporation in the PRC Company was in cash and in kind.

The principal businesses of the PRC Company are property development and investment
in Shanghai and Beijing of the PRC and investment holding.

For the year ended 31 December 2003, the audited consolidated net profit before and
after taxation and extraordinary items of the PRC Company were approximately RMB598,955
and RMB381,767 respectively (equivalent to approximately HK$570,433 and HK$363,588
respectively). The audited consolidated total and net assets of the PRC Company as at 31
December 2003 amounted to RMB1,812,779,936.87 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,726,457,083) and RMB1,310,510,171 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,248,104,925)
respectively. The audited consolidated revenue of the PRC Company for the year ended 31
December 2003 amounted to approximately RMB2,9987,839.85 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,855,086).

On 30 June 2004, the PRC Company reduced its registered capital from
RMB1,310,510,171 to RMB297,835,041 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,248,104,925 and
HK$283,652,420 respectively) and accordingly distributed assets by way of distributing cash
and assets in kind (principally landed properties and securities) in the amount of
RMB1,012,675,130 (equivalent to approximately HK$964,452,505) to Shanghai Baosteel
Group Corporation. As far as the Directors are aware, the aforesaid reduction in the registered
capital was intended to down-size the then investment scale of the PRC Company at the
relevant time.

The principal assets of the PRC Company after the aforementioned assets distribution
are its investments which are engaged in the business of property development and
investment in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the unaudited consolidated net profit before and
after taxation and extraordinary items of the PRC Company were approximately
RMB21,398,465 and RMB10,145,517 respectively (equivalent to approximately
HK$20,379,490 and HK$9,662,397 respectively). The unaudited consolidated total and net
assets of the PRC Company as at 31 December 2004 amounted to RMB1,911,701,332.31
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,820,667,836) and RMB308,227,622 (equivalent to
approximately HK$293,55¢,116) respectively. The unaudited consolidated revenue of the PRC
Company for the year ended 31 December 2004 amounted to approximately RMB249,286,068
{equivalent to approximately HK$237,415,303).

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, significant improvements in results for the year
ended 31 December 2004 of the PRC Company was primarily attributable to the increase in
sales of development properties during the year.

Specific projects that the Joint Venture Company, through its wholly owned subsidiaries,
presently plans to develop include two property development projects in Shanghai.

— 10 —
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The first project is a commercial and residential development at Lot Nos. 30, 33 Yangpu
District. The residential portion has a site area of about 76,248 square metres with a total
gross floor area of about 190,620 square metres and the land use right certificate has already
been obtained. About 15% of the residential portion is scheduled for pre-sale shortly while the
remaining part is at the planning stage. The commercial portion has a site area of about 30,043
square meires with a total gross fioor area of about 90,129 square metres and the land use
right transfer coniract has already been signed. It is expected that the land use right certificate
will be obtained in due course. Such commercial portion is at the planning stage. Depending
on market situation, the development units under the project will be for sale or rental.

The second project is a residential deveiopment with three phases on the West Side of
Keshan Road, Yanghang Town, Baoshan District. It has a site area of about 103,009 square
metres with a total gross floor area of about 122,581 square metres and the land use right
certificate has already been obtained. The development units under the project is intended for
sale. The first and second phases are expected to be completed in the third quarter of 2005
and the third phase is expected to be completed in mid-2006.

Save as disclosed above, the Joint Venture Company currently does not have any
property projects on hand. '

The Joint Venture Company does not have any associated company.

The Joint Venture Company will not be treated as a subsidiary of the Company and will
be accounted for as a jointly controlled entity under the equity method where the Group’s share
of results will be included in the consolidated profit and loss statement and the Group’s share
of net assets will be included in the consolidated balance sheet.

7. REASONS FCR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE JOINT VENTURE COMPANY

In consideration of the rising economy of PRC and to further enhance the international
exposure of the Company’s property development business, the Company decided to invest in
the Joint Venture Company.

Furthermore, Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation, Mitsubishi and Tokyu are
internationally known corporations and the Directors believe that with the participation of these
corporations, the Joint Venture Company (and in turn the Company as a sharehaolder) will
receive benefits in terms of profit returns and the advanced management, marketing and
construction skills and experience in the PRC property development industry acquired by the
Company through its participation in the Joint Venture Company.

The principal activities of the Group include pkoperty investment and development in PRC
and it has always been the strategy of the Group to seek business expansion through niche
acquisitions, joint ventures or business alliances to capitalise on growth opportunities in PRC.
The Directors consider that the Transaction represents a further step in achieving the Group’s
stated plans and objectives.

— 11 —
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The terms and conditions of the Joint Venture Contract, the Capital Increase Agreement
and the Articles of Association and the amount of contribution of the respective parties were
determined as a result of arm’s length negotiations among the parties by reference to, among
other matters, the revalued consolidated net asset value of the PRC Company of
RMB444,683,917.60 (equivalent to approximately HK$423,508,492) as at 30 June 2004
conducted based on the aggregate open market value of the underlying assets of the PRC
Company by Shanghai Lixin Appraisal Lid. (LEIE&EEFEERAH), an independent
professional valuer in the PRC, and the reduced registered capital of the PRC Company of
RMB297,835,041 (equivalent to approximately HK$283,652,420) as at 30 June 2004.

The contribution to be made by the Company in the total amount of RMB444,683,917.60
(equivalent to approximately HK$423,508,492) is to finance the working capital of the Joint
Venture Company and as reserve fund for future investment projects and opportunities.

The Directors are of the view that the terms of the Joint Venture Contract and the Capital
Increase Agreement are on normal commercial terms, are fair and reasonable and are in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders and that the increase in registered capital of the
PRC Company, the transformation of the PRC Company into and the establishment of the Joint
Venture Company are in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

It is expected that the Transaction will not immediately have significant effect on the
earnings and assets and liabilities of the Company. Having considered the financial position of
the Company and that the investment of the Company in the Joint Venture Company will be
funded by the Company’s internal resources, the cash outflow arising from the investment in
the Joint Venture Company will be off-set by the corresponding increase in assets and no
additional liabilities will be created and on such basis, the Directors confirm that there will be
no material adverse impact on the earnings and assets and liabilities of the Company as a
result of the Company having entered into the Transaction.

8. DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

Based on the aggregate amount to be contributed by the Company to the Joint Venture
Company under the Joint Venture Contract, the Capital Increase Agreement and the Articles
of Association, the Transaction constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

9. FURTHER INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the additional information set out in the Appendix to this
circular.

Yours faithfully,

Dr. Lui Che Woo
Chairman
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APPENDIX GENERAL INFORMATION

1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and
individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
circular and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge
and belief there are no other facts the omission of which would make any statement herein
misieading.

2. QUALIFICATION AND CONSENT OF EXPERT

The following is the qualification of the expert who has given opinion or advice contained
or referred to in this circular:

Name Qualification
Shanghai Lixin Appraisal Ltd. Professional valuer in the PRC
(LS EHENERRAT)

Shanghai Lixin Appraisal Ltd. (i {E4ESNEERAE) has given and has not withdrawn its
written consent to the issue of this circular with its statement included in the form and context
in which it is inciuded.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Shanghai Lixin Appraisal Ltd. (LI {EREFEERAH)
has no shareholding interest in any member of the Group or the right (whether legally
enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to hominate persons to subscribe for securities in any
member of the Group.

3. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), and the details of any
right to subscribe for shares of the Company and of the exercise of such rights, as required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions, if any, which they are taken or deemed to
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have under such provisions of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be maintained
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Ordinary Shares of the Company

% of
Issued
Personal Family Corporate Other Share
Interests Interests interests Interests Total Capital
Lui Che Woo 268,014 7,130,234 38,129,737® 1,257,389,151® 1,302,917,136 59.12
Francis Lui Yiu Tung 391,164 - —  1,257,389,151%1,257,780,315  57.07
Lennon Lun Tsan Kau — — — — - —
Eddie Hui Ki On — — — — — —
William Lo Chi Chung 100,000 — — — 100,000 0.00
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu 4,639,166 — —  1,257,389,1512 1,262,028,317 57.27
David Akers-Jones — — — — — —
Michael Leung Man Kin — — — — — —
Philip Wong Kin Hang — — — — — —
Leo Lee Tung Hai — — — — — —
Robin Chan Yau Hing 278,977 — — — 278,977 0.01
Charles Cheung Wai Bun 7,239 — — — 7,239 0.00
Robert George Nield - — — — — —
(b) Share Options of the Company
Exercise
Options Price Exercise period
(HKS$)
Lui Che Woo 1,500,000 0.5586 20 May 1999 — 19 May 2008
1,350,000 0.3600 30 Dec 2000 — 29 Dec 2009
2,000,000 0.7200 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
Francis Lui Yiu Tung 1,000,000 0.5586 20 May 1999 — 19 May 2008
1,200,000 0.3600 30 Dec 2000 — 29 Dec 2009
1,868,000 0.7200 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
Lennon Lun Tsan Kau 500,000 0.3600 30 Dec 2000 — 29 Dec 2008
1,054,000 0.7200 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
Eddie Hui Ki On — — -
William Lo Chi Chung — — —
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu 600,000 0.5586 20 May 1999 — 19 May 2008
870,000 0.3600 30 Dec 2000 — 29 Dec 2009
1,269,000 0.7200 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
David Akers-Jones 150,000 0.7200 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
Michael Leung Man Kin 300,000 0.7200 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
Philip Wong Kin Hang . 300,000 0.7200 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
Leo Lee Tung Hai 150,000 0.7200 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
Robin Chan Yau Hing ) 150,000 0.7200 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
Charles Cheung Wai Bun 300,000 0.7200 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013

Robert George Nield —_ — —_
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(c) Ordinary Shares of KWCM

% of
Issued
Personal Family Corporate Share
Interests  Interests Interests Other Interests Total Capital
Lui Che Woo 8,085,831 1,468,496 76,880,265!"  856,721,578® 943,156,170  72.71
Francis Lui Yiu Tung 2,980 — — 856,721,578® 856,724,558 66.05
Lennon Lun Tsan Kau — — - — - —
Eddie Hui Ki On — — - — - —
William Lo Chi Chung 186,000 - — — 186,000 0.01
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu 1,861,906 — - 856,721,578 858,583,484  66.19
David Akers-Jones - — — — — —
Michael Leung Man Kin — — — — — —
Philip Wong Kin Hang - — — — — —
Leo Lee Tung Hai — — — — — —
Robin Chan Yau Hing 65,306 - - — 65,308 0.01
Charles Cheung Wai Bun 1,810 — — — 1,810 0.00
Robert George Nield — — — — — —
(d) Share Options of KWCM
Exercise
Options price Exercise period
(HK$)
Lui Che Woo 1,500,000 0.5333 20 May 1999 — 19 May 2008
1,800,000 0.5216 30 Dec 2000 — 28 Dec 2009
2,000,000 0.5140 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
Francis Lui Yiu Tung 1,000,000 0.5333 20 May 1999 — 19 May 2008
1,600,000 0.5216 30 Dec 2000 — 29 Dec 2009
1,870,000 0.5140 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
Lennon Lun Tsan Kau — — —
Eddie Hui Ki On — —_ —
William Lo Chi Chung - — —
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu 600,000 0.5333 20 May 1999 — 19 May 2008
1,070,000 0.5216 30 Dec 2000 — 29 Dec 2009
1,270,000 0.5140 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
David Akers-Jones — — —
Michael Leung Man Kin 300,000 0.5333 20 May 1999 — 19 May 2008
1,070,000 0.5218 30 Dec 2000 — 29 Dec 2009
300,000 0.5140 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013

Philip Wong Kin Hang — — —
Leo Lee Tung Hai , — — _
Robin Chan Yau Hing — — -
Charles Cheung Wai Bun 300,000 0.5140 1 Mar 2004 — 28 Feb 2013
Robert George Nield - — —
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Notes:

)]

(2

(3)

35,075,725 shares and 3,054,012 shares in the Company were respectively held by Best Chance
Investments Ltd. and Po Kay Securities & Shares Company Limited, both of which were controlled by Dr.
Lui Che Woo.

1,257,389,151 shares in the Company representing more than one-third of its issued share capital were
held by the discretionary trusts established by Dr. Lui Che Woo as founder. The Company was interested
in 852,775,351 shares in KWCM representing more than one-third of its issued share capital held by a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. In addition, one of the said discretionary trusts was interested
in 3,946,227 shares in KWCM.

Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wal Yu, as either direct or indirect
discretionary beneficiaries of the discretionary family trusts, are deemed to be interested in those shares
in the Company held by the trusts and in those shares in KWCM in which the Company was interested
as aforesaid.

76,880,265 shares in KWCM were held by Best Chance Investments Ltd. which was controlled by Dr. Lui
Che Woo.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

4, SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at the Latest Practicabie Date, the interests of every person (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of

Ordinary Shares % of Issued

Long Short Share
Name of shareholders Position Position Capital
HSBC International Trustee Limited 1,257,390,959(" — 57.06
Marapro Co., Lid. 190,228,0802 _ 8.63
Symmetry Co., Lid. 190,228,080 — 8.63
Polymate Co., Ltd. 190,228,080 — 8.63
Moore Michael William 202,113,009 — 9.17
Penta Investment Advisers Ltd 202,113,009 — 9.17
Zwannstra John 202,113,009 — 9.17
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Notes:

(1) HSBC International Trustee Limited is the trustee of discretionary trusts which hold 1,257,390,959 shares
in the Company.

(2) Marapro Co., Ltd. is a beneficiary and Symmetry Co., Lid. is the trustee of a trust which was interested
in 190,228,080 shares in the Company.

(3) Polymate Co., Ltd. is the ultimate holding company of certain companies interested in 190,228,080 shares
in the Company.

There was duplication of interests of:

(iy 1,257,389,151 shares in the Company among Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu
Tung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu. These shares were also interested by HSBC
International Trustee Limited and among these shares, 190,228,080 shares in the
Company were aiso interested by Marapro Co., Ltd., Symmetry Co., Ltd. and
Polymate Co., Lid.;

(i) 858,721,578 shares in KWCM among Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung and
Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu; and

(iif) 202,113,009 shares in the Company among Moore Michael William, Penta
Investment Advisers Ltd. and Zwannstra John.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company had not been
notified by any persons who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the SFO.

5. LITIGATION

As at the Latest Practicable Date, no member of the Group is engaged in any litigation or
claims of maieriai importance and no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the Group.

6. SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors has entered into or has proposed
to enter into any service agreements with any members of the Group (excluding contracts
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation).
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7. COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Dr. Lui Che Woo (who is also a controlling shareholder
{as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company), and also Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung and
Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu (“Relevant Directors”), through a family trust directly or indirectly,
are also interested in independently managed companies (“Competing Business”) engaged in
the business of property investment, trading and development in Hong Kong, which are likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business of property investment and
development in Hong Kong. The Relevant Directors are also directors of the holding company
of the Competing Business. Nevertheless, the Board has 13 members and comprises
professionals from various disciplines, including property, business management, legal,
banking, finance, auditing and accounting. As the Board is independent of the boards of the
Competing Business in that the operations and decision-making of the Board are entirely
separate and independent of the boards of the Competing Business, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from the Competing
Business.

Given that the Competing Business is more focusing on property investment and trading
in Hong Kong while the Group is more focusing on property development both in Hong Kong
and mainiand China as well as investment holding in KWCM and that the size of the Competing
Business is significantly smaller than that of the Company compared on a total assets basis,
there is unlikely to be any significant competition between the Competing Business and the
business of the Group. The Competing Business’s property trading activities and its property
portfolio are considered not in line with the Company’s current investment strategies and
interests and therefore are not included in the Group’s business. The Group has a diversified
and well managed property portfolio and is able to maintain its competitiveness to safeguard
its interests in property investment and development in Hong Kong. The Relevant Directors do
not currently have any intention to inject the Competing Business into the Group.

Besides, the Company is capable of carrying on its business independently through a well
balanced corporate governance system. Regular meetings of the Board (including the
independent non-executive Directors) are held to review the Group’s latest performance and
development as well as any investment opportunities. The Relevant Directors, in performing
their duties as directors of the Company, have always acted and will continue to act in the best
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Relevant Directors are fully
aware of their fiduciary duties and will avoid any conflict of interest. The Relevant Directors will
abstain from voting on matters where there is any potential conflict of interest, if and when
necessary. As a result, the Group considers that its interest regarding the business of property
investment and development in Hong Kong is adequately safeguarded.
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8. GENERAL

{a) The registered office of the Company is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM12, Bermuda.

{b) The principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company is 29/F, K. Wah
Centre, 191 Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

{c) The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Steven Tong Kui Nam, who was
appointed as the secretary of the Company before 1 December 1989, and the
qualified accountant of the Company is Mr. Ken Wong Chun Keung, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of Certified
General Accountants Association in Canada.
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(1) Best Chance Investments Ltd. J& 5 & 3 % A B/ 7 4 Bl £ 7 35,075,72508 % 3,054,012/ &
ARG > ZWEAR Y ESEMELES -

(2) #Z%1,257,389,I5SIRANFARGHEEETL (HBENELEABZANL FF - hFL
AEBTRA=Z42—UE - AARER—ME2EMB A RIFE EERME52,7753518K
Bz WEERMEBTRA=Z 42 —UE - W Kb —H I 2 HGHEREE
3,946,221 2 R -

BEMEL  BEREREERBEBER L TAZSRGEEGR 2 EERMER2EZHEA
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MRS -

(3) Best Chance Investments Ltd. 1574 76,880,265 EEEM KW > Z Aol BEMELEH -

b A 3 4 R
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REZ®E ' B KB ZAEDE
HSBC International Trustee Limited 1,257,390,959® — 57.06
Marapro Co., Ltd. 190,228,080® — 8.63
Symmetry Co., Ltd. 190,228,080@ - 8.63
Polymate Co., Ltd. 190,228,080® - 8.63
Moore Michael William 202,113,009 - 9.17
Penta Investment Advisers Ltd 202,113,009 - 9.17
Zwannstra John 202,113,009 - 9.17
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BEM 8,085,831 1,468,496  76,880,265%  856,721,578®  943.156,170 72.71
BRER 2,980 - — 856,721,578® 856,724,558 66.05
fRER - - - - - -
FH% - - - - - -
B 186,000 - - — 186,000 0.01
HEZEwm 1,861,906 - - 856,721,578 858,583,484 66.19
SR - - - - - -
2 E - - - - - -
HHEF - - - - - -
FHE - - - - - -
BB 65,306 - — - 65,306 0.01
REH 1,810 - - - 1,810 0.00
B4 - - - - - -
(T EERMZERE
RARE TEE TR
(&)
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2,000,000  0.5140 CEENE=A—RAFE-_FE—-=#"F=-+AH
BHER 1,000,000  0.5333 —AWAAERRA-TEE-EZEAER AT AR
1,600,000  0.5216 ZEEEEL_R=+HE_ZEZNET_A -+ NH
1,870,000  0.5140 TRENE=ZA—-RAFE-FE-=E£-A=-+AH
1 BBk - - -
HHE - - -
BEHE - - —
& 600,000  0.5333 — AN ERA-THEZZEEANERAA TB
1,070,000  0.5216 ZEEEE+-_RA=+AZEZZFENET+_R_1+H
1,270,000  0.5140 CEENE=A—-RE_F—=F£"A=+/N\H
g - - -
2 300,000  0.5333 —ANAERAZTHEZZZEAERLA+LHE
1,070,000  0.5216 “EFEFEA+_AZTHE_FFNET R+ AHE
300,000 0.5140 CTEENF=A—-BE_E—-=Z4#"FB=-+/HRH
HEE - - -
FRE - - -
BAEE - - -
TR H 300,000 0.5140 TEENFE=A—RAF-_FE—-=#"A=+/AH
B %M - - -
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BARER REER NRER Hib aft Z2ESK
&R 268,014 7,130,234 38,129,737% 1,257,389,151® 1,302,917,136 59.12
B R 391,164 - - 1,257,389,151@ 1,257,780,315 57.07
RER - - - - - -
FEE - - - - _ _
BiHE 100,000 - - — 100,000 0.00
WEER 4,639,166 - —  1,257,389,151®@ 1,262,028,317 57.27
SR - - - - - -
2y - - - - - -
HET - - - - - -
ZEWRE - - - - - -
BEE 278,977 - - - 278,977 0.01
REWN 7,239 - - : - 7,239 0.00
B4 - - - - - -
() B AR ZRRE

ARE TEE 7658

(3 50)
BEM 1,500,000 0.5586 —ANAERABE-_THEE_ZEZANEREA+NIE
1,350,000 0.3600 CRERES_A=SHHEE_ERZAEFT A ZTNME
2,000,000 0.7200 “EEFENE=A—-HE_F—=£"HA=-+/AH
BRER 1,000,000  0.5586 —WARERAZ+THEZE-_ZZAELA+ A
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1,868,000 0.7200 TRENE=A—~HEZ-ZE—-=€"A-+NAH
B Bk 500,000 0.3600 ZEREEYAZ+REZZEFNE+_A =+ A
1,054,000 0.7200 CTEENE=A—-AEZZE-=Z#£-A_"+/AH
HFHE%Z - - =
BEHR — — —
HEZEm 600,000  0.5586 —MANERAZ+HEZZZEAFERLA+ LA
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ZyE 300,000 0.7200 TEENE=ZA—HE_E~=%"_H=+AH
HET 300,000  0.7200 ZEENE=A—-RBE-ZE—-=€-"H=-+AH
ERE 150,000  0.7200 —RENEZR—BE_FE-=-/R_-+AH
BEHE 150,000  0.7200 “ERENE=ZA—-AEE—=2"A=-+/\H
REH 300,000 0.7200 TEENE=/R~AF_FE—-=%€£"H-+/NAH
B - - -

— 14 —




By 8% —RESR

1. BEEH

ABEEE TR REREEEAAR L BN - BFEERAE R TR %
R I E RIERI R 2B > WRMEL — S EHE > ERRIE SRR > &
BRWERRAAEMEE > REABK TR AESHERERL -
2. BERERREEE

UFBRABHBE RS AEERREE I HE L B

B 'B#®
LBV EREMEARAA o (B 2 3 il (B B

E LR B ARG A FR A R © 9 T 8 A 3 ek I LA & o B T 2 B SO I i BR 3 h
EHRE > BYEBRZERE -

B AT A > 10 0 S B A PR A L T B 6 A MRS (R
PR » T EE A T R AR 4 A A R A A (0 B 2 BB 2 R R s 5 T 4K
EATE) -
3. BERTRERZER

MBAR AT 0 > AR B e B X VR -t J B /40 4 8 ) T 32 o 4R

(EFEREESIARGAZERIUERDAHEAOER RRE WFH)) > RREES
FMEHRAS =R+ _haFRARAEFZELMTE  SRBER LR Z LHAR

—13 -




EEERN

ATAIE T RE (HbEE) TEB T EEGEM LB EEETHAERARSFEAR
HEEEARMMHEAFETGHENS > FELARAR _EZNFEASAA=ZTHZELGEREE
F{E A R %444,683,917.6070 (FH% 1 49423,508,492%:70) » URFEAR R - EFZNENA
=t+HEHIEZFMER ARE297,835,04170 (FHSEF R £7283,652,420470) » & BAFIFA
HEREEAELSN  WMERRRARNERZEREGHEREHFZHERKE -

ANEZ BB ANRH444,683,917.60 (S 47423,508,492%70) » LIEHEA R E
ARAZEERE®  UMARRBREEEBE BB REES -

EERRCERALARNEGRZRFIRE - BREGRITY . BELATEH > FaF
AREBRZAMGE > MAEAREMEAREN  FEAFAEMASEAARMLLFEAH
FFE A AR RBRZ ERBAE -

ARG EEMAGHRELAARZANEKEERAREREAESE - EEEA LA
ZHBGRIL > UEALRREGEAFZEE > HERAARAZANERME > MERES
BRARMEAZRERE > MU EEMBENZ BEEH > AEfgBEMELRMRE
EFEWER  ARAZEMNERERAERAGRALATIIXEFEMXZERNANEY
@ .

8. AFBEZX%

ERARFAMBSESR - HEBRRXAAERAANSTELRALEZAR  RELH
MU FEBRA QR —HEATHREZRL S

9. E—5EH
B B A R R BT A A R
5

Il E BHE

“EFEFREZAZTRA

12~




EESRN

F-HEHRMRBHE BEGHM > FELAEBREEE - FERH BT
BH 576,248 F K » BEEEATERENA 519062077k » i EWAEH B L b (5
T HEEBHHISREFNPREBRREE > METHOAUSERBEE -  MERHZHBER
#1 530,043 % > BEEEATBRA 90,1207 7% > I B a4 255T Db i AtEs
AR - FEHAAMEZEH LW EAEE  ZREBOHEEERSIME - RPHHm
o REZEEmMMABEZ BN FLHERHMA -

FE_HEERAZHRABMAELERTHATLUBANZATSERER - HttBHHE
#5103,009FFK > MBEEEAEBFAAH R 122,581 FF XK » i ©BRAGH B L8 A
FoMBZEEMMEZEVHEERTELE S BHAE_BRPEEN _ZEFTAER=
ZFEM o MBEZHUEIAMR _FEAREPHTK -

BRUEFEEES  fEAFRRKILEEAFHERRERETT -

FEB AR ETMBHELAH -

FEARMAGERAALNRAZHELAR > MeRBEEERFARRZEHNEBAK
AEBIEZEXBEBEERGERERA MALREMZEEFENBAGEREAR
xR o

7. RIRELAZEER

ZRITRALCHECRRE > ARE-PMEAL A ZEBYEBREY - ARRARE
BERGEAA -

B EEEMREAT  SEREEREBNEZEE  EEMEELTORSR
ZRET - & AT RATERRK THEHEEE  ANEERFANSREES
AR 2SR - TR R R R RN BT

FEBZIZEFOERTERERHEY X MASE-BZRBABERSEY

B AEEENEBRRARED > UERTHZBREE - EXRA/RGEEAE—F
HEAEEBEEZAELERE -

—11 -




ESERN

BEAFMESERBARZEZREMRLSY  RER _ZZ _FLtA —BEUEBALLE
EEBEFRAF - RESFHA > LBEREALARFAURSEEAEYEFEAFRHE -

FRARIZERZEZFNEFELEBRATETYEMRBERIRE  UERREER -

BE_ZF=F+_AZ+—H1UFE > FEAFGBHAFCEHEEN A EZEERX
AR R A AN RW¥S598,95550 & A B #381,76770 (43 B #H % it 49570,433% 7T X
363,588#70) - N_EFE=ZF+A=1+—8 > PEAFAZEBERGELSEELERFESA
BAR®1,812,779,936.8770 (AHE A £91,726,457,083% 70) B AR %1,310,510,1717C (FBER
%71,248,104,925%70) - BE_FBEZFE+_A=+—HBLEE » FEAGAZEBELEEW
AR/ NR%2,997,839.857T (F 5 R 492,855,086 7C) ©

R-FFEFEAA=Z+TH > FEAAMEFMREARAH AR 1,310,510,171CHI B EA
R #297,835,0417T (43 B AHZE 7 49 1,248,104,925# 0 12 283,652,420 70) > BHIt > BB &
FEYEE (FERIHYERTR) 2 FAMNLIBEEREELA RS- REBEARY
1,012,675,1307C (AHSE A 49964,452,505%70) 2B E - MEE M > tHHIBGMEELERE
HEARBHTEARERZRERE -

MEBEENIRE > FHARAZIEEEMRAZATHEYRMBERTNIRBE LHEE

BE_FZFNE+_A=Z+—HILFEE > PELAKRBKEAFBEEHBNREZ RBH
Bhr a3 FIE A B A B AR %21,398,4655C K A R #10,145,5175T (4 BIAEZE 7 #920,379,490
WILHK9,662,397THT0) - R_BENES _A=+—0 > FRALAAZALELGFSEELHE
R FE s A ART1,911,701,332.3150 (M 12 £91,820,667,936% 70) X A\ R %308,227,622
7C (FBE 1 49293,550,116%0) - BE_EEZNME+_A=Z+—HILFEE » FEAFZRE
BRHEESRBLH B AR K249,286,0687C (M % 2 £9237,415,303% 7T) -

MREFHEA > BE_FFTWUET_A=1+—BLLFE > FEARAZEHARERE -
FERARFEAYEEREBZHE LI -

FREAFBAFBERAZEMBAAMB AEHANE LEMBEYXERIEAR -

10—




4. BERR
ERARGEAAZREMMAE LR ZAREEME - BEFF AR BN ZEERS

TR BERGEAFAZEE & EERINELSEHFQAZESRENEEARKLE

ERERIHEE - FHASEARMRALAZESREY S BEALRZEH TR -

5. FBLBEEASE

AT -FAT -=Z=ZERESZER

tEEMEEAAAEECE - EREAEEAFAZIEXFOERTEREREL
ER LB -

ERAN—HBERERAF MEETERBLARAAKRALEHERZ TEXERARER
EPBABREYRBERER > UEARFERMZBEER - AARAFERELFAZE
BEXBNAREERTENMEEYERERERE - BEEN T —HREZERAF > MHE
FEMBLARKRAZH TR TEEXGAREERTEANANE - $HEL T HEEM
B ZBEEHIEBREQAZEIREEIARTERTRAMKE HERTHEEM
B BRFRRRFERMZIAFAERTBRBELAT Y ERBESEAIR  FEBIEZE
BREERESRERN > MAREMEZEERENBEAGSEERESRA -

ZEAMEREHRRGHIETZ AR c ZHZITBXGEFEEE - £& - B8 - L2
MmBEAEEEXRTE LW -

RERARRAELXGMETZAR  c REZFTEEHABRELMHE -
6. FRTELAREEQNFAZER

FEATA-HMEEAREALT  RERTUAEAR  HEHRRATERNH
HEAELEEAEBADLRRE - PEAAR—AASE-A+LAESE EEL L




ETEERNH

RENSE
MEHRRZ TERFTEZENT -
HE - —EERAFE—HA=+—H
THEF (1) LBEEEMAT
() &4
3) =% ;
@) &k
(5) PEAA c EEWER > MEEMEL—VEEENE
M BEERREEG PERARDABEBSLELESESR
EEAAEEBERZZEREMLAT -
B AR Z s A R %297,835,0417C (55 A #9283,652,420i 7T)
g
FRARZ rTHEEHEEEAA
ME—RE R
A B E] AN R ¥717,674,7977C (A8 5% it #1683,499,807 5 7T)
= & A A
AEEAAE
SEANAEZ
HEMES
SELEIEM BN LBERERARRITLAESREHERE FEAF
EARZHE: ZEERAERE FEHRACHEEARZEMEL S

E41.5% (HHE R AR #297,835,041 70 5% #1283,652,420%

JG) o

FEAAHMEASTPRTZHS(HERARY
297,835,041 705K £7283,652,420% 70) # AN R UK £ H
& 15% (SR ARK107,651,21970 5 47102,524,970%
TO) H=ZEUBRESBE > 2% HER AR 14,353,496
T #713,669,996% 70) AR S UBREHE -




EEgEH

AL ZEREE
BMEMEA L E

HEZ &E
AR

op

BEAFESRE
ZH

i A o Be o R

Gy

THHERBEBEFH=THRN (LREZEELEERE) -
(1) BEARBEEEXRM

2) FERAFRERECLESEBEETGFE > #HWT -
TEERERNTILA15% AN FIE45% > =&
L15% K E&/E2% 5 &

() REBEEEGRZGIEGHEEARATRETEREE
BEZFHE -

BEARESERaAGEFAN - LEHHALELAR
ARFEEEREZAIMELER ZEAHZL—2E
BRI BEFARRERAFZIHNESE - §EAHA
EEREUTEREZZARACELFAEFE =02 U

FEAFRIBBRELREERBHEZSFE . HBEEA
B ZRRERERGE LR ERZ RELGIEES > B
FHEEEEBNAG41.5% AT E41.5% - = E 1L
15% B R 2462% -

REELRBHEXEARED EHEA_FTETLF—H
ZE+—HAEESECRALEEREZ HH) B =M
HAZ BH) #1545

BERRAMR@ESEHPEBUFRMME  O)FEE
BN AEREREER  ROBEBRERREMS -




EETgBh

B GERRAZEZBNARTE LB RITETYRHA
BEBE -

EEATZHELAEH AN R¥2,100,000,0000T (H8% R
% 2,000,000,000% T) c HEHEBEFMEEFLARK
717,674,7977C (F %5 i £7683,499,807# T) °

ENnFrBEMEEAFRNRT YA ESRE RERAFEATA
ZIRBEREMBES L ARK297,835,04150 (HERY
283,652,420%70) > BHERACHEBEARAZEREER S
B41.5% (HZ% MW AR 297,835,041 70 5 £7283,652,420%
J6) c RELAAGMERFRT Z41.5% HERARE
297,835,041 0 £7283,652,420 7T) B AN T UBR ST
% 15% (FAZ M ARY%107,651,21970 80 4102,524,970%
T HEZBURSBE > 2w HER AR 14,353,496
TEEE#113,669,996% 70) Ml R SRS HE -

End ZERESHSAE-—SLHEARY
146,848,876.607C - A R ¥ 53,077,907.847c X A R %
7,077,054.2570 (A% 74 49139,856,073%7C ~ 50,550,388
JC%6,740,052%70) > fEAEMEREGE - FREEAU
BT -

CEHRAEATSMER T I E 2 T
— 5 )

FEAFNGZAMBENESE > HHEEARKHZIRT
REMAFEERE - RESEER - AEBHEARS
EARARGEIMESRREIMEERGERER




EESgRH

A EGE > NEAR HTER ENPRARZERESL s URKTRATAHEINS
GEAFAEBAGERF  ZrRMEREABA LEEREXRARAA] - SEBHLSD
HAARAERE URRSERRA I EHEZ G - BB LTHRA > XHEEBREL A
ZHEATEBEZRS - ABKERERN BTRUEFEXZFEZFE -

2.

CR-4-AC

SHEAAZIERIMENT :

R - “EERE—A=+—H
AT (1) LEEEEMAT ;

2) ERF
3) ZE: K&
4) ®Ez -

LEEAEELAARRRA REEMERS0ER ZIF
EHERBLEERQZRAE - TBEEGREEREA
IR ARBEMEZ EEHERNGRBRERN > MALE
MEZEEBEMBAGREEARERA - AR LEHH
SEARRA LIBE R EiE > MELFFERM K
ARFEZHWBEAR ERBRLWHA) > FAFELEHR
AP EHAEALIZESR  BRIEFFEEZHEIALALZ
BEAL -

BRAAM TS - MEFHRA - B RRER  ME
H—UIEEERESR > LEEAEEAR  ZEARE
RUEEZAZREARBEREYRBINA LA LR
RABRFRFARBEALZHE =T -




ESERN

K. WAH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEBREEARLE
(HEREERRLZARNE)

(R - 173)

PpATEF

B EMIE L > MBE» K8+ LLD > DSSc (£ /)
ARER (EFruz)

RER B EFHRER)

FrE % 5 GBS » CBE > QPM » CPM

B2 Em

FHATEF

BB B+ > KBE> GBM » CMG » Hon. RICS » K4+

ZW#E > CBE> KF#+

HETIE L > oBS A&+ LLD - DH*
ZFHEHEL > GBS LLD » KT # L+
BRABIE L > GBS > LLD » XM+
BEHMLE cFELe

B

* BIERFEF

RURE -
AFTHREZXRS
Y& ED
LRPEHETHERRRERE
1. &5

aftmER
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12

Bermuda
FRIEMER
B

b

BHEE1919E
RERBEFO
291%

WoEREE-ANE  EEGEMR-FERF—AST—0 > ALA@RLEHE
MEMAR  SERKETLAEAR; RORLBEAMEMAT - =% - HERFEL

_ 4




g =

AR & AR PEEERH

T T ) 14 Vs T S 57125 5 2 K K )
(e 15 TEEEESEEARAT  —ER R E R
287

(EsEEEEAA] i} TBERERLR > EFREFMBIZEERHE > B
PE L E Z W —ROR

TR S i AL ER

T B 22 B 18 %%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ@&ﬂ

B3 i<} REAPHERAEH  EEAZHACLEARRAES
L ol AN

(5% %R i3 REEESR HEWBRR LA ERETZIXS

wAEANMERT

(1) EEABARFIOSLAIZLTERE

Q) A24BELHEREN BETARFAATRCERATRLIABERRETLALER R
AR E XS

) ABIRNETFFILMAFNELRAILEFAMLY  FARAEAN T L BB EZL
EXBERAMAKRE -




g2 =

[&&EBH

[FEHEEM]

[RERATH A

[ ErmAL A

[ ]

[ Bl A

ok

FEBHR _FERRF-A=Zt+—HTZZPHEE
ERER > NEAH K aE) B+ N6 23
A UEMPRAREELSEEAARBLIEER
G|

LHEHEEBAAR AR ZERRZ

REBMERLA  EEBIMBLZERAF » H
RGBT ER LT - A X EHEEFRS.8%E R
Z KB A E

CTEEREREZA-FTE=AR > IABEESTERERE T
MEETERZEEYITES

B R 2% LR A (BER R ET)

ZEWERAEGH > EAFFMRLEREAESEL
B EHZad

FEANRILME

FEE@EMEARAA > —HEEBEFREELQA > B
BRETUAEAR  HEBREAREEMb LBHE
AEEARRZERE > HRECESR HEWER
NEAEREHAERENF - FEARAR-AAZFZ
AttRAEFEEENU LEEAEMEZEMERA
ZEHBFMEL  HER_ZFFZ_FLA-HERS
WA LBEEMERRAH -




g2 =

EABRN REXRDIANI  FTRATHAHRZELAATHEL

(A r &R

Ex3-4

[ & th o4

/NN

M= AL

(EH

(A% H]

[ 7T |

[

([REAF

el

i1

SEBHR-FEEE—AS+— B ZZHAER
CRATER AR (o aE) HntELARz
BMER URSTEATHDAESEATRRLA
B/

HERE
EEEMHERFEARR-ZFEZAF—A=Z+T—HTX
ZHEEHZE AEFH EPaERE EndEAAZHE
MEE > UEMTRLARBHEASEAREINILE
NN

K. Wah International Holdings Limited = % B Bf & &
ARAA ~MEAFREFMNIZERLZERA
B> HRGEBZAFER LT
FHRAITR TG 2 R

KAFESE

KN E REME A

B BHEERW

o B & W R AT BUR

FEEHEGERRAR HEREBAI LEBEMEE
BRARA]D » —RFPHEEAF > MRBESESR -
WEBRRR AR ERATEATNEREREY - HEBE

WMERAF - ANF - ZEREEHBI5EEH41.5%
41.5% ~ 15% 2% AHE 52




A
................................................................................................................................................. 1
ETenH

e BB oottt e et s e ettt e et ee et e e seeareneeeeneranes 4
2 B B B TRl e ettt e e eaneeaees 5
3 B B B B ettt ettt ere ettt ettt e e sraenas 8
B, B ETIIB oot ettt r et s et e et st e st ereseneeaeee 9
5. AHLBEEHEERAT  ARAF ZEREZZER e 9
6. AHBE AT BB BT Z BB oot 9
7. BB T ZIEE oo e 11
8. B T BB 3T B oottt ettt ee e 12
0. A B B ettt et ee et s st et s e st 12
BB R e ettt e et anen 13




ﬁﬁ%# EHEE .

@Tﬁﬂ%ﬁii_bﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ E*ﬁéﬂﬂﬁmu %E;!Zﬁﬂ’ﬂtfﬂﬂf’“%‘?% ﬁ% R ﬁgﬂf
HEGTMRN A EEREYN -

RET B #2 T 2% K. Wah International Holdings Limited® BB E B A B A® Z &K
EHREE - FE_LEH%ZF@&%QEI—EER%/\  FRFEEIHEFEZHT  BRELKLK
HAACHERE » u@ﬁfiﬁijﬁﬁk

FEBREXEMARAAHSBRZAETERAE %ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ&%%ﬁ%%%%%% >
sl B e e 7 ABE R 5k R 74 9 6 2 A 1T 36 4 7R 720 T 2 A o R M 3% %Iﬁ@ﬁ’ﬁ%lﬁtZ&ﬁ@,
SFRMEEAMEAE -

K. WAH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEREEAER AT
(AEFREEARLZIARDD) - .
 (BBRE173)

O Rysmeg
URTEETNEKBNBERRA

C CEFEF-A-—tAA




gwﬁ oo plopiing [ A

Mandan , Feb: 7. 2008
<J

The Stock Eschange of Hong Kong Limited takes no idifity for the of this 5
fiabilily whatseever for any loss howsoever arising lrom or in reliance upon the whole or any zart of the

makes no rep
of this

aste ity y or

o !
K. WAH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

‘(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
{Stock Code: 173)

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

ESTABLISHMENT OF A JOINT VENTURE
FCR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT IN PRC

any

The Board is pleasad to announce that an 31st January 2005, the Company entered into (a) the Joint Yenture Cantract with Shanghal Baosteel Group Corporatlon,
Mitsubishi and Tokyu; and (b} the Capital Increase Agreement with Shanghai Baoslesj Group Carporation, Mitsubishi, Tokyu and the PAC Company, in connection
with, among other things, the increasa in registered capitai of the PAC Company and the transfermaticn of the PRC Company into and the estabfishment of the

the Capital Increase Agreement.

AMB297,835,041
to approximately HK$139,856,073
- by bank ar other financial borrowings to be arranger

Joint Venture Company. The Articles of Association wera also enterad into among the Joint Veoture Parties to reflect tha terms of the Joint Venture Cantract and

The total investment amount of the Joint Vanture Company Is RM82,100,000,000 (e%uivalanl to approximately HK$2,000,000,000), which Includes ths registerad-

capital of RMB717,674,797 (squivalent to approximately HK3$683,499,807). Shanghat Baost d C

respectively coniribute and theretore be entilled as to 41.5%, 41.5%, 15% and 2% of the reg

ratio shail be the same accordingly. The Company will conldbute a total of RMB444,683,917.60 {equl to y

aquivalent to approximately HX$283,652,420) will be treatad as the registered capital, whilst the remaining RMB146,848,876.80 [equivalent
?.wm be treated as d;:»remium of the registered capitai. Any further tunding required by the Jaint Venture Company will be funded

by the Joint Ventura Company. N

The Transaction constitutas a discloseable transaction of (ge Company unde‘;\ lheShLls\ing Rules. A circular cantalning,- amang other things, details of the Joint
a despatehied to the Sharehold
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1. INTRODUCTION

The Board is pleased to announce that on 31st January 2005, the Company
entered into (a) the Joint Venture Contract with Shanghai Baosteel Group
Corporallon, Mitsubishi and Tokyu; and (b) tha Capital Ingcrease Agreement with
Shanghai Bzasteel Group Corporatlon, Mitsublshi, Tokyu and the PRC Company,
in connection with, among other things, the increase In registered capital of the
PRC Company and the transformation of the PRC Company inta and tha
astablishment of the Joint Venturs COmPa%which will be ranamed as “Shanghai
Bacland Co., Lid. { LSTHERRARAE ) | The Anticles of Association were aiso
enlered into among the Joint Ventura Parties to reflect the terms of the Joint
Venture Contract and the Capital Increasa Agreement.

2. THE JOINT VENTURE CONTRACT
A summary of the principal terms of the Joint Venture Coatract is as follows:
Date:’ 31st January 2005 -
Parties: {1) Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporalion;

(2} the Company; : .

(3) Mitsubishi; and -

{4} Tokyu. *

Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporaticn is bensficially
interested in 42% equity of Shanghal Bao Jia Concrete Co.
Lid., which is a 50% ownad jointly controited enlity of KWCM,
Shanghai Bac Jia Concrete Co. Lid. is accounted tor under the
equity method where the Group's share of resulis will be
- included in cansclidated profit and lass statement and the

Group's® shars of net assets will be included in the -

consolidated balance sheet. Shanghal Baostae! Group
Corporalion is neither a connected person of KWCM nor ot the
Company by virtue of its 42% Interest in Shanghai Bac Jia
Concreta Co. Lid. as it is not a subsidlary {as defined in the
Listing Rulesf) af KWCM or the Company and it does not fail
within the definitlon of a "connected person” undar.the Listing
Rules. .

Save as disclosad herein and to the best of the know'edge,
information and belief of the Directors and having made af]
reasonable enquiries, Shanghai Baostae! Group Corporation,
Mitsubishi and Tokyu and their respeclive uitimate beneficial
owners ara third parties independent of the Company and its
- subsidiaries and connected parsons of the Company.
The Joint. Venture Company shall be established for the
principal purpose of property development and investmant In
Shanghai and Beijing of the PRC. .

Business
abjectiva
of tha Joint
VYenture
Company: .

Total investment The total investment amount of the Joint Venture Company
amount and Is RMB2,100,000,000 (equivalent to  approxi

“HK$1,248.104,925 and HK$283,652,420 respectively) and according

aly

Joint Venturs Contract, Capital iIncrease Agreement and the Articles of
Assaciation. It was Incarporatad on 17th February 1993 in Shanghal, the PRC
under tha name of Shanghai 8aosteel Real Estala COperation and Development
Caompany (LRRP5 B25]) and the name of which was’ changed to
Shanghai Baostesiland Co., LId. (&R Elgon 13t July 2002. As far as
tha Directors are aware, the capital originafly contributed .b? Shanghal Baosteal
Group Corperation in the PRC Company were in cash and in kind.

The princiral nusinesses gf the PRC Campany are proparty develdpment and

investment in Shanghat and Beijing of the PRC and investment holding.

For the financial ysar ended 31st December 2003, the gudited cansalidatad net )
* profit before and afler taxation and extraordinary items of the PRC Company wers

approximately RMB8538,955 and RMB381,767. respectively {equivalent to
approximately HK$570,433 and HX$363,588 raspectively). The audited
consaclidated total and net assels of the PRC Company as at,31st December 2003

amgunted  to - MB1,812,779,936.87 {equivalent to  approximately
HKS$1,726,457,083) and RMB1,310,510,171 (equivalent to approximately
HKS1,248,104,925) raspectively. The audited iidated ravenus af the PRC

Company for the year ended 31st December 2003 amaunted to approximately
RMB2,997,839.85 (equivalant to approximately HKS$2,855,086).

On 30th June 2004, the PAC Company reduced its registerad capital trom
RMB1,210,510,171 to RAMB297,835041 (eguivalent. to afpmxlmataly

y distributed
assets by way af distributing cash and assets in kind (principally land properties
and secirities) in the amount of RMB1,012,675,130 (equivalent to approximately
HK$964,452,505) to Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation. As tar as the
Diractors are awars, the aforesaid reduction’in tha registered capital was Intanded
to down-size the thaen investment scale ot the PRC Company al the relevant me.

The principal assets of the PRC Company after the aforemantioned assets
distribution are Its investments which are engaged in the business of property
davelopment and investment in the PRC.

For the Hinancial year ended 315t December 2004, the unaudited consolidated net
profit betora and after taxation and extracrdinary items ot the PRC COmpanr were
approximately RMB21,398,465 and AMB10,145,517 respectively (equivalent to
approximately HK$20,379,490 and HK3$9,662,397). The unaudited consolidated
totai and net assets of the PRC Company as al 31st December 2004 amounted to,
RAMB1,911,701,332.31 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,820,667,936) and
AMB308,227,622 (eciuivalen.t to appraximately HK$293,550,116) respectively.
The unaudited consolidated revenue of the PRC Company for the year ended 31st
December 2004 amounted to approximately RMB249,286,068 (equivalent to
approximately HK$237,415,303).

To tha best of the Directors’ knowledgs, significant impr ts in results for the
year anded 31st December 2004 of the PRC Company was primarily attributabla
to the increase in sales of development properties during the year. -

Specilic projects that the Joint Venture Company presently rlans to develop
inciude two property development projects in Shanghal (one will be a commercial

registered FK$2,000,000,000), which inciudes the registered capital of
capital of the RMB717.674,797 . (equivalent to approximately
Joint Venture  HK3$683,459,807). .

Company: Shanghai Baosteel Group Corgoration is traated as having
contributed to -41.5% (equivalent to RMB297,835,041 or
approximately HK$283,652,420) of the registered capital of
the Joint Venture Companz by virtue of tha criginal and entire
equity interests In the PRC Company owned by it on the date

. of the Joint Venture Contract: The remalining registered capitat
of the,Joint Venture Company wil! Ba funded in cash as to
41.5% (equivalent to AMB8297,835,041 or approximalely
HK$283,852,420) by the Compdny, as to 15% (equivalent to
RMB107,651,219 or approximately HK$102,524,970) by
Mitsubishi and as o 2% ({equivalent to RMB14,353,486 or
approzimately HK$13,669,996) by Tokyu.

The Company, Mitsubishi and Tokyu will further contribute
RMB146,848,876.80, RMB53,077,907.84 and RMB7,077,054.25
sespectively (equivalenl to approximately HiK$133,856,073,
HKSS0,550,388 and HK$6,740,052) as premium of the
registered capital. Such premium is to be satisfied in cash.

(Please reler t0 the section headed “Capital Increase
Agreement” Jor details of the contributions in the registerad
capital ot the Joint Venture Company.)

Any turther tunding required by the Joint Venture Campany will
be tunded by bank ¢r gther financial barrowings to be arranged
by the Joint Venture Campany. Pursuant to the Joint Ventura
Contract, the Joint Venture Parties are not required o provide
further linance / guarantee for oulside borrowings of the Joint
Venlure Company. . )

and residential development in Lot 30, 33 Yangpu District, Shanghai, whilst the
other one will be a residential development with three phases In Yanghang Town,
Baoshan District), .

* The Joint Ventura Company will not be treated as a subsidiary of the Company

and wili be accounted for Under tha equity method where the Group's share of
results will be Included in consolidated profit and loss statement and the Group’s
share of net assets will be included in the lidated balance sheet.

7. REASONS FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE JCINT VENTURE
COMPANY

In cansideration of the rising economy of PRC and lo further enhance the
International exposure of the Company’s property devetopment business, the
Company decided to invest in the Joint Venture Company.

Furtharmare, Shangha] Bacsteel Group Corporation, Mitsubishi and Tokyu are
internaltionalty known corporations and the Directors befieve.that with the
participation of these corporations, the Joint Yenture Company (and in tum the
Company as a shareholder) will receive henefits in‘terms of profit returns and the
advanced management, marketing, construction 'skills and exparience In the PRC

roperty devetepment industry acguired by the Company through Its participation
n the Joint Venture Company.

Tha prncipal activities of the Group include property Investment and development
in PRC and it has aiways been the strategy of the Group lo seek buslness
expansion through niche acquisitions, joint ventures or business aftiances to
capitalisa on growth apportunities in PRC. The Directors consider that the
Transaction regrasents a further step in achieving the Group's stated plans and
objectives. .o .

The tarms and conditions of the Joint Vanlure Conlract, the Cagital_lncreasa
Agreement and the Articles of Associaltion and the amount of con:pbguon'of the
respective parties wera determined as a resuit of arm’s length negotialions among
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‘ Deadline for
payment of
registerad
capital and the
premium (2)
ccntributions

‘Within 30 dﬁys of the {ollawing events (whichever is the lalest):
(3} the issue of the business licence ol the Jaint Venture
Company:

the complelion of the registration of the change of the
capital structure of the Joinl Venture Company as follows:

by the 41.5% by Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation, 41.5%
Company, by the Company, 15% by Mitsubishi and 2% by Tokyu; and
%Lsyt:ﬁrshx and (3} the compfetion of the registralion of tha change of the
) board ot directers of the Joint Venture Company in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Joint

Venture Coniract .

Board The board of direclors of the Joint Venture Company shali
compasition ol consist of six directors. Shanghai Baostee! Group Carporation
the Joint and the Company shall each be entiled to appoint two
Venture directors, whilst Mitsubishi shall be entitled to appoint one
Company: director. The remaining director shall be the executive director

of the Joint Venture Company. The appointments of the
chairman and the executive director of the Joint Venture
Company shall be elected by a resolution of the board of
directars af the Joint Venture Company with the approval of
over two-thirds of the directors of the Jaint Venture Company.

The nét profit of the Joint Venture Company aftar deducting tax
and statutory reserves will be shared by the shareholders of
. the Joint Venture Company lnfmpprﬂon to their entitiament of
the registered capital of the Joint Ventura Company, famely
41.5% by Shanghai Baostee] Group Corporation, 41.5% by the
Company, 15% by Mitsubishi and 2% by Tokyu.
15 years from tha date of the issue of Ihe business licence of
the Jaint Venture Company, .

Protit sharing
ratio:

Duration of the
Jaint Venture
pany: -
Taking Effect: The Joint Venture Contcact will taks eftect upon the a)
approval from the relevast PRC government authorities; b)
“Internal approval from and due execution by the respective
Joint Venture Parties; and (c) Capial Increase Agreement
taking effect,

3. CAPITAL INCREASE AGREEMENT
A summary ot the principal terms of the Capital lnC{ease Agraement is as follows:

Date: 31st January 2005
Parties: (1) Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation;

(2) the Company;

(3) Mitsubishi;

(4} Tokyu; and ’ -

(5) The PAC Company. The Diractors contirm that, to the best .
of their knowladga, Information and bellet having made al}
reasonable enquiries, the PRC Company Is a state-owned
corporation.

Registered RMB 297,835,041 {equivalent o approximately
capltal of HK$283,852,420) .
the PRC .
Company-

Sole shareholder Shanghal Baostee! Group Corporation
of the PRC
Company as at
the dats of this
anncuncement: . .

Registered RMEB 717,674,797 {equivalent to approximately
capitaf of the HK$683,499,807) ’

Joint Venture
Company after
Increasing the
registered
capital of the -
PRC Company
and
transforming
the same into
the Joing
Venture
Company:
Contributions
inthe
registered
capital of the
Joint Venture
Company:

contributed to 41.5% (equivalent lo RMB297,835,04%1 or
approximately HK$283,652,420) of the registered capital of
the Joint Venture Company by virtue of the original and entirs
equlty interests in the PRC Company owned by it on the date
of the Joint Venture Contract. .

The remaining reqistared capital of the Joint Venture Company
will be funded mn cash as

RMB297,835,041 or approximately HMK$283,652,420) by the
Comparny, 2s 1o’ 15% (equivalent to RMB107,651,27¢ or
approximately HK$102,524,970) by Mitsubishi and as to 2%
fequivalent ~ to RAMB14,353,496 or
HK$13,668,996] by Tokyu.

4. SOURCE OF FUNDING

The Investment of the Company In the Joint Venture Company will be funded by

the Company's intemal rescurces. Having cansidered the present working capital
requirements of the Company Including the investment in the Joint Venlure
Company, the Directors conflrm that thera will be no matarlal adverse impaci on
. the cash flow and gearing ratic of the Company. The Joint Venture Company is
expected to be classitied as a jointly controlled entity in the consolidated accounts
of tha Campany. N

5. INFORMATION OF SHANGHAlI BAOSTEEL GROUP CORPORATION, THE
COMPANY, MITSUBISHI AND TOKYU

Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporatibn is a state-owned corporation. The principal
businesses of Shanghat Baosteel Group Corporalion include stee} manufactunng
and land development in PRC. *

The Company is an Investment hoiding company and the principal activitias of the
‘principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities of the Company are property
investment and development in Hong Kong and Mainfand China as well as
Investment holding in KWCM. The Frincipal activilies af the principal associated
companies of the Company are also property Investment and devel t in

Shanghat .Baos\eel Group Corporation is trealed as having

o 47.5% (equivalent to..

approximataly -

the parties by reference to. amang other matters, the revalued onsofidated nét’
ass2t value ol lhe PRC Company of RMB444,683,917.60 {equivalent o
approximately HKS423,508,492) as at 30 June 2004 conducted based on the
aggregate open market value of the under! ing assels of the PRC Company by
Shanghai Lixin  Appraisal Ud. (LSEEESFERRNT ). an independent
prolessional valuer in the PRC, and the reduced registered capital of the PRC
Company ol RM8297,835,041 (equivatent to approximately HK$283.652.42D) as
2t 30 June 2004,

The Directors are of the view that the terms of the Joint Venture Coniracl and the
Capital Increase Agreement are on normal commercial terms and are tair and
reasonable and are in the interest of the Company and the Shareholders and that
the increase in registered capital of the PRC Company, the transformation of the
PRC Company into and the establishment of the Joint Venture Company are in the
interests of the Company and the Sharehalders as a whole.

8. LISTING RULES IMPLICATIONS

Based on the aggragate amount to be contributed by the Company to the Joint
Venture Company undec the Joint Yenture Cantract, the Articles ot Associatian
and the Capital Increase Agreement, the Transaction constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

A circular containing, amorig other things, detaiis of the Joint Venture Contract
and lhe Capiial Increase Agreement will be despatched to the Shareholders as
soon as possible,

9. DEFINITIONS

In this announcement, the failowing expr have thair ¢

! x i meanings
sel out balow unless the context requires otherwise. R

“Acticles of the sino-foreign equity joint venture articles of association
Association” dated 31st January 2005 entered into between the Joint
Veniure Parties in relatlon 1o, among other things, the
Increase In registered capital of the PRG Company and the
transformation of the PRC Company into and the
. establishment of the Joint Venture Company
“Baard” the board of Directors
“Capital the capital increase agreement dated 31st January 2005
Increase antered into between tha Jaint Venturs Parties and the
Agreement” PRC Company in relation ta, among other things, the
Increase in registered capital of the PRC Company and the
. transformation of the PRC Company info and the
establishment of tha Joint Venture Company
“Company” K. Wah International Holdings Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with fimitad Itabitity and
the shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange
“connacted has the meaning as ascribed to the expression under the -
person(s)” - Listing Rules R .
"Director(s)” the director(s) of the Company
"Group” the Company and its idiaries
“HK$" Hong Kong doltars, the lawfut currency of Hong Kong
“Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Regicn of the PRC
“Joint Venture Shanghai Baosteelland Co., Ltd { LA NRAT }{tobe
Company” Baoland . Co., Lid.

renamed as _ “Shanghai
(EBARBRKHRAR ), 2 sino-forsign equity joint venture
comgany to be transfermed from the PRC Company and
estavlished pursuant to the Joint Venture Contract, the
Capital increase Agreement and the Articles of Association
and the equity interest In which to be held by Shanghal
Baosteel Group Corparation as to 41.5%, the Company as
10 41.5%, Mitsubishi as to 15% and Tokyu as to 2%
respectively

The sinc-foreign equity joint venture contract dated 31st
January 2005 entered into between the Joint Ventire
Parties in reiation to, among other things, the increase in
registered capital of the PRC Company and the
transfermaticn of the PRC Company inlo and the
establishment of the Joint Venture Company .
Shanghai Baostest Group Ccrporation, lhe Company,
Mitsubishi and Tokyu .
K. wah Constructlon Malerials Limited, a company
incorparated in Hong Kong with limited fiability, the shares
of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange and an indirect 65.8% owned subsidiary of the
Company

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (as amended from tima to time)

“Joint Venture
Centract”

“Joint Venture
Parties”

KWeMm

“Listing Rules”

P
Hong Kong and Mainland China. KWCM is an investment holding company and
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries andjoint!y cootralled entities of
KWCM are the manufacture, saje and distributlon of construction materials in
Hong Kong and Maintand China. Thes principal aclivities of the principal
associated companies of KWCM are also the manufacture, sale and distribution of
construction materials in Hong Kong and Maintand China. The Jointly controlled
entities and the associated companies of the Company and KWCM are accounted
for under the equity method where the Group's share of results will be Included in
cansolidated profit and loss statement and the Group's share of net assets will be
inciyded in the consclidated balance sheel.

Mitsubishi is a i:ampany listed on Tokye Stock Exchange. The rincipal

busi of Mi ishi include busi in energy, metal, machinery, c| emical,

living essential and invesiment in land development.

Tokyu Is a company listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange. The principal business of

Tokyu is Invesiment in land development.

8. INFORMATION OF THE-PRC COMPANY AND THE JOINT VENTURE
COMPANY .

The PAC Comgany is a state-cwned fimited cempany and wholly-owned by
Shanghai Baosieel Group Corporation immediately prior io \he entering of the

“Mitsubishi” Mitsubishi Corporaticn (= m;ttiié a company
. incorporated in Japan and iistad on Tokyo Stock Exchange
*PRC" the People’s Republic of China . .
“PRC Shanghai Baosteelland Co., Lid (LERBEEARAT), a
Company”™ state-owned limited company and whol -owned by
N Shanghal Baosteal Grc;? Corparation immedlately priot 1o
the enlering of tha Joimt Venture Contract,” GCapital
Increase Agresment and the Articles of Association, which
will be transformed into the Joint Venturs Company
Fu:s.uam to the Jolnt Venture Contract, the Capital
ncrease Agreement and the Adicles of Assaciation, |l was
. incorporated on 17th February 1993 in Shanghal, \he PRC
under the name of Shanghal Baosteel Reai Estale
Oﬁgaﬂnn and Development Company
( LENARLENNEANG) and the name of which was
. changed to  Shanghal Baosteeliand _Co., L.
. (_tzsgmmmm 1st July 2002,
Wis an ir ment holding pany and is principally
engaged In the buslness of property development and
investment in the PRC.
“RMB® Renminbi, the lawful currency of PRC .
“Shanghai Shanghat. Baosteel Group C y {LRREMERT), 3
Baosteel stale-owned corporation incorparaled izt the PAC and the
Group sale shareholder of the PRC Company as at the date of
Corporation” this announcement -
“Shareholder(s)™ the sharshoider(s) of the Company
“Stock The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited '
i .
“Tokyu* Tokyu Land Corporation (WSTREZHRASH ), a company
incorporated in Japan and listed on Yokyo Stock Exchange
“Transaction™ the transaction under the Joinl Venture Contract, the

Capital Increase Agreement 4nd the Articles of Assaciation
For the purpose of this announcement,
(1) the exchange rate of RMB1.05=HKS$1 has been used; and

(2) certain English translations of Chinese names ar words in this announcement
are included for information purpose only, and should not be refied upon as
the ofticial translation of such Chinese names or words.

By Order of the Board
Steven Tong Kui Nam
Company Secratary

+ Hong Kang, 4th February 2005

As al the date of this the fve di are Or. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lul
Yiu Tung, Mr. Lennon Lun Tsan Kaw, Mr. Eddie e Ki On, Mr. Wiltiar La Chi Ghung and Ms. Paddy
Tang Lui Wai Yo, the non-execulive director is Mr. Mickael Leung Man Kia and ihe indepeodent
hop-executive directors are Sir David Akers-Jenes, Dr. Philip Wong Kin Kang, Dr. Leo Lea Tung
Hai, Dr. Robin Chan Yau Hing, Dr. Charies Cheung Wai Sun and &tr. Rober! George Nizid.
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‘SOUTH CHINA MORNING POST

The Stock Exchange ol Hong Kong Limited takes no raapnnslbl/ll/ for the contents of this announcemen!, makes no representation as to its accurecy or completeness and expressly
disclalms any liability whatsoaver for any loss howsoever arlsing from or In reliance upon the whole or any part ol the conlents of this announcement.

K. WAH UNTERNATIONAL K. WAH CONSTRUCTION
HOLDINGS LIMITED MATERIALS LIMITED

(incorporated /n Bermuda with limited fiabllity) (incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
{Stock Coda: 173) ' : (Stock Code: 27)

JOINT CLARIFICATION, UPDATE AND RESUMPTION OF TRADING

Further 1o the joint announcemoant of 20th January 2005, it is ciarified that Macau Governmant approval for the posélb\a acquisition by a subsid\a? of KWCM of
up lo B0% of the sharas in Galaxy, which Is considared by KWCM and KWIH to be of lundamental importance to their pretiminary. conceptual studies, has been

obtainad.
There is at present no agresment or understandlng} formal or informal, that an injection will definitely take place.

The approval sought and obtained by Gelaxry i a praitminary.step to possible negotiations. Tha approval does not commit any sharaholder In Galaxy to dispose of
its Intsrest to KWCM or any othar parson. it doss not commit KWCM or any other person to acquire any interest in Galaxy. Negotiations ralatling to the possibls
Injection have not yet commancad. '

Management of KWCM has almogt completad the l;manfmr»ary concopiual studies and expacts to seek from itz board In due course a mandate o enter nto
negotiatione for the acquisition of shares in Galaxy. (1 has been (nformed that they can commaence only after such time as further Internal discussions betwaen the
Galaxy shareholders have taken pfaca. KWCM cannot predict If and when that will happen. .

The timetable for tho pocsalblo Injoction o yet to be decided, Negotlations may or may not commence and' If commenced may or may not lead to a
transaction, Investoro arc advised to sxorcige caution !n deallng in the shares of KWCM and KWIH.

Trading in the shares ot KWIH and KWCM on the Stock Exchange was suspended at the request of KWIH and KWCM with etfect trom 10:5% a.m. on 218t
January 2005 pending the release of this further clarification anrouncement, KWIH and KWCM have applied for a resumption of trading In thelr shares with sffect
from .30 a.m. on 3rd February 2008. ’ ’ .

Further announcemento will be mada It and when appropriate. : J

The board of diractors ("KWIH Board") of K. Wah International Holdings Limited {"KWIH") and the board of directors ("KWCM Board”) of K. Wah Construction
Materials Limited ("KWCM';)Vra!er to the joint announcements made by KWIN and KWCM on 7th and 14th Octobsr 2004, and 6th, 11th and 20th January 2006 and the
apnouncement made by KWCM on 14th January 2005 (the “Announcements”). Thay clarify that although KWCM has baen informed by Galaxy Caslno S.A., Macau
(*Galaxy”) that approvai has been obtained from the Macau Governmant for the possibis acqulsition by & wholly-owned subsidiary of XWCM of up 10 80% ot the
shares in Galaxy, there is at pressnl no agreement or understanding, formal or informal, betwean KWCM and the sharsholders of Galaxy that an Injectlon will

definitely taks place.

The uitimate conlrollln% shareholder of Galaxy ls Dr. Lul Che Wao (tha. Chalrman of both the KWIH Beoard and the KWCM Board), who ls alsc a discrationary
bensaficiary of tha Lul tamily discretionary trusts which are the ultimate controlling shareholdars of both KWIH and KWCM. As such, Galaxy and its controliing
shareholders are connected persons of KWIH and KWCM for the purposs of Chaptar 14A of the Rulss Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) en The
Steck Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {*Stock Exchange"), :

Or. Lul Che Woo and Mr. Francis Lul Yiu Tung {("Mr, Francis Lul"), both o! whom are directors of KWIH and KWCM are also directors of Galaxy. Given the close
roiationship between the controlling shareholdars of Galaxy and ot KWCM, preliminary explorations of intarest between KWOCM and the conlrolling shareholdars ot
Galaxy started In or about late May 2004 when It was discussed whether it might be warthwhlie to consider investigating the possible Injection of an Interest in Qalaxy
Into KWCM. In conseguance of such explorations of Intsrest, both Calaxy and KWCM Initlated and proceeded with thelr respective and separate preliminary
conceptual studies. Amongst other tachnical Issues, Galaxy as part of its own exploration of interest and prafiminary conceptual sludies chose of.its own acdord ‘o
apply for. and then oblained, the approval of the Macau Governmaent for the possible acgulsitlcn by KWCM ot up to 90% of the shares in Galaxy, KWCM had not then
decided that it would ofler to acquire the Interests In Galaxy nor has it yet so decided. Galaxy made an application wnhcut_namlng the transteree In Dacember 2004.
The Macau Government refused lo accept It unless a transferee was named, Mr. Francls Lul (who is also a directar ol KWCGM and of KWIH) then signed the
application namlng KWCM and its wholly-owned subsldiary on behalf of Galaxy on 12th January 2005. Apart from Mr. Francis Lul, none of the other membars/
employeas of KWCM and KWIK knew that Galaxy would name KWCM and/or KWIH in the appllcation. Apart from Mr Francis Lul, no membars of the board of KWCM
or KWiH had reviewed the 12th Januiry application. - - .

KWCM understands that tha application was made because the approval would be assential In the event anything came of the preliminary conceptual studles and
KWCM, Galaxy and Its shareholders wished to take matters further. The application was not previously disclosed by KWCM and KWIH as {t was Just part of the
prefiminary explorations of interest and prefiminary conceptual studies. it could have been withdrawn. 1t could have been rejected. Even if successiul it would not
cammit KWCM to acquire any Interast In-Galaxy, An announcemant before ‘approval could have caused speculation.

KWCM was orally Informed by Mr. Francls Lul on behalf of the ¢antrolilng sharehaldars of Galaxy in the late afternoon of 19th January 200§ that the approval from
tha Macau Government had bean obtained. So far as relevant, the Macauv Government approved the possible acquisition by a wholly-owned subsidiary of KWCM ot
up t0 80% of the sharss In Galany, The approval was dated 17th January 2005 and racelved by Galaxy on 19th January 2005. The approval does not commit anz
shareholder in Galaxy to dispose of its Interest to KWCM or any other parson. it doas not commit KWCM or any othar parsen to acquire any Interest in Galaxy, Such |
approval sought and cbtained by Galaxy s a preliminary, slep to any possible negotiation, without which nene can commance.

Negottations relating lo the possible injectlon have not yet commenced. Management of KWCM has almost completed the preliminary conceptual studles which
include research on the market, studies of dlitarent financing methods and structure, and lechnical studies as to the execution and \mrlemematicn staps of ths
transactlon. Management of KWCM expects to seek from its board In due course a mandate to enter Into negotialions lor the possible acquisition of shares in Galaxy
It and when Galaxy shareholdars indicate that they will entertain such negotiations. KWCM has been Informed that no nagotlation will commence until such time as
Jfusther Internal discussions between the Galaxy shareholders havs taken place. KWCM cannot prodict it and when that-whl happen,

The timetabls for the possible Injection Is yet to be decided and negotlations may: or may not commence and If commenced rhay or may not lead to a transactlon. in
the event that a transaction materialises, KWIH and KWCM will make appropriate announcemants as required by the Listing Rules. Investors are advised to exerclse
cautlon in dealing in the shares of KWCM and KWIH.

KWIH wishes to retar aigo to Its announcament of 17th December 2004 and states that it has now executed agree'mems for Its participation in a [eint venture property
cdevslopmant company in Mainland China which constitutes a discloseable transaction of XWiH under the Listing Rules and is entirely unrelated to the possible
gag'?hchgn relating to Galaxy. A separate announcement by KWIH will be made as soon as practicable and Investors should read thal announcement when It is
] ed. . . -

Save lor the activities maentioned above and previously disclosed by KWIH In the Announcements and to be the subject of the separate announcement of KWIK.
referred to above, the KWIiH Board confirms that thers are presently no negotiations or agreemsnts relating to Intended acqulsitions or realisatlons relating to KWIH
which are discloseabls under Rule 13.23 of the Listing Rules, nelther is the KWIH Board aware of any matter discioseabla under tha general obligation imposed on
KWIH by Ruls 13.08 of the Listing Ruiss, which is or may be of a price-sensitive nature. The dlrectors of KWIH individually and Jointly accept responsibliity for the
accuracy of this announcemsnt, )

The Directors of KWCM have noted the recant Increases in the price and trading volume of the shares of KWCM and wish to state that they are not aware of any
ather possible reasons for such ircraases. '

Sava for the activitlee mentionad sbgve and previously disclosed In tha Announcements, the KWCM Board confirms that there are presently no negeotiations or
agreamants relating to intended acqulsitions or realisations relating to KWCM which are discloseable under Rule 13.23 of the Listing Rules, neither is the KWCM
Board aware of any matter discloscabia under the generai obligation imposed on KWCM by Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules, which is or may be of a price sensltive
nature. The direclors of KWCM Individually and Jolntly accept respansibility for the accuracy af this announcemant. : ’ )

Trading In the shares of KWIH and KWCM on the Stock Exchange was susfended at the requast ol KWIH and KWCM with eltect from 10:51 a.m. on 21st January
2005 pending the releass of this announcemant. KWIH and KWCM have applied for a rasumption of trading In their shares with aftect from 9:30 a.m. on 3rd February,
2008, Further announcements will be mads it and when appropriate,

As at the date of this announcement, the exesutive directers of KWiH ars Dr, Lul Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lul Yiu Tung, Mr. Lennon Lun Tean Kau, Mr. Eddie Hul KI On,
Mr. Willlam Lo Chi Chung and Mrs. Paddy Tang Lui Wal Yu; the non-executive director of KWIK Is Mr. Michaai Leung Man Kin and the Independent non-exacutive
%’;%c;t{o‘rsagérggvma'aés Sir David Akerg-Jones, Dr. Phillp Wong Kin Hang, Dr. Leo Lee Tung Hal, Dr. Robin Chan Yau Hing, Dr. Charles Cheung Wal Bun and Mr,

As al the dats of \fﬂs anngouncemaent, the executive diractors of KWCM are Dr. Lul Che Woo, Mr. Francls Luf Ylu' Tung, Mr. Chan Kai Nang, Mr. Wililam Lo Chi Chun
Ms. Paddy Tang Lul Wai Yu and Me. Joseph Chae Ying Keung; the non-executive director of KWCM Is Mr. Moses CgHen "Mo Chi and thg'indé endant non-executlvgé
dirgctors of KWgCM are Dr. Charles Chaung Wal Bun, Mr, James Ross Ancell and Dr, William Yu; Shus Lam, e ! P

By Order of the Board of By Order of the Board of
K. Wah Internctlonal Holdings Limited K. Wah Cyonstrucuon Materials Limited
Stoven Tong Kul Nam Steven Tong Kui Nam
Company Secratary . . Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 2nd February 2005
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The Stock Exchangs of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibliity far the contents of this announcement, makes no representation as to Its accuracy or complataness and
expressiy disciaims any llablity whatsoever for any loss howscever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any par! of the contents of this announcement.

K. WAH INTERNATIONAL K. WAH CONSTRUCTION
HOLDINGS LIMITED MATERIALS LIMITED

(Incorporated In Bermuda with limited llability) (incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
{Stock Code: 173) {(Stock Code: 27)

JOINT CLARIFICATION, UPDATE AND RESUMPTION OF TRADING

Further to the joint announcement of 20th January 2005, It Is clarified that Macay Government approval for the possible acquisition by a subsidiary of
KWdC)M o': UPQO Qo%bof‘ the shares In Galaxy, which |s considared by KWCM and KWIH to be of fundamental importance to thelr preliminary conceptual
studies, has bean obtained.

There is at present no agreement or understanding, formal or informal, that an (njection will deflnltaly take place.

The approval sought and obtained by Galaxy Is a preliminary step to possibla negotiations. The appreval does not commit any sharehcider In Galaxy to
dispose of its interest to KWCM or any other person. It does not commit KWCM or any other person o acquire any ‘Interest In Galaxy. Negotlations
relating to the possible injectlon have not yet commenced. .

Management of KWCM has almost completed the preliminary conceptual studies and expects to seek from its board In dus course a mandate to enter
into negotiations for the acquisition of sharas in Galaxy. It has been informed that they can commence only after such time as further Internal discussions
between the Galaxy shareholders have taken place. KWCM cannot predict If and when that will happasn,

The timetable for the possible ln‘ectlon Is yet {0 be decided. Negotlations may or may not commence and If commenced may or may not lead o
a transaction. Iinvestors gre adviced to exerclae caution In deeling In the shares of KWCM and KWIH. :

Trading in the shares of KWIH and KWCM on the Stock Exchange was suspsnded at tha request of KWIH and KWCM with effect from 10:51 a.m. on
21st January 2005 pending the release of this further claritication announcement. KWIH and KWCM have applied for a resumption of trading (n their
shares with effect from 2:30 a.m. on 3rd February 2005.

Further announcements will be made if and when appropriate.

Tha board of directors ("KWIH Board"} of K. Wah International Holdings Limited ("KWIH") and the board of directors {("KWCM Board") of K. Wah Construction
Materials Limited ("KWCM") reler lo lhev}oint announcements made by KWIH and KWCM on 7th and 14th Oclober 2004, and 6th, 11th and 20th January
2005 and the anncuncemant made by KWCM on 14th January 2005 (the "Announcements”). They clarify that aithough KWCM has been [niormed by Galaxy
Casino S.A., Macau (“Galaxy") that agprova! has been obtalned from the Macau Government for the possible ecqulsition by a wholly-ownad subsidiary of
KWCM of up to 90% of the shares in Galaxy, thera Is at present no agraement or understanding, formal or informal, between KWCM and the shareholders of
Galaxy that an injsction wliil definltety take place. ‘

The ultimate controlling shareholder of Galaxy is Dr. Lul Che Woo {the Chairman of both tha KW!H Board and the KWCM Board), who s also a discrationary
benefictary of the Lul famlly discretionary trusts which are the ultimate contrelling shareholders of both KWIH and KWCM, As such, Galaxy and its controlling
sharehoiders are connacted persons of KWIH and KWCM for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities {“Listing Rules") on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {“Stock Exchange™).

Dr. Lul Che Woo and Mr. Francis Lul Yiu Tung ("Mr. Francis Lui"), both of wham are directors of KWIH and KWCM are aiso directors of Galaxy. Given the
close relationship between the controlling sharehoiders of Galaxy and of KWCM.dorellmlnary explorations ol interest betwean KWCM and the contralling
shareholders of Galaxy started in or about late May 2004 whan 1t was discussed whethar it might ba warthwhiie to considar investigating the possible
injectlon of an interest In Galaxy into KWCM. In conseguence of such explorations of interest, both Galax{ and KWCM initiated and proceeded with thelr
respective and separate preliminary conceptual studies. Amongst other technicail issues, Galaxy as part ol its own exploration of interest and prellminary
conceptual studies chosa of its own accord to apply for, and than obtained, the approval of the Macau Government for tha possible acquisition by KWCM of
up to 96% of the shares in Galaxy. KWCM had not then declded that it would offer to acquire the interasts in Galaxy nor has it yat so decided. Galaxy made
an appilcation without nam|nev(he transferee in Decamber 2004. The Macau Government refused to accept it unlass a transferea was named. Mr. Francls Lui
(who is aiso a directer of KWCM and of KWIiH)} then signed the application naming KWCM and its wholly-owned subsidiary on behall of Qajaxy on 12th
January 2005, Apart from Mr. Francls Lui, none ot the cther membaers/employees of KWCM and KWiH knew that Galaxy would nama KWCM and/or KWIH In
the application. Apart from Mr Francis Lul, no members of the board of KWCM or KWIH had reviewed the 12th January application.

KWCM undaerstands that the application was made because the approval wou!d be assential In the event anything came of the preliminary concapiual studies
and KWCM, Galaxy and its sharehoiders wished to take mattars further. The application was not previously disciosed by KWCM and KWiH as it was Just part
of the preliminary explorations of interest and prelim!narr conceptuai studies. !t could have been withdrawn. it could have been rejected. Even if successful it
would not commit KWCM to acquire any interest In Galaxy. An announcement before approval could have caused speculation.

KWCM was orally informed by Mr. Francis Lui on behalf of the coniroliing shareholders of Galaxy in the late afternoon of 19th January 2006 that the approval
{from the Macau Qovernmant had been abtained. So far as relevant, the Macau Government approved the possibie acquisition by a wholly-owned subsidiary
aof KWCM of up to 50% of the shares In Galaxy. The approval was dated 17th January 2005 and received by Galaxy on 18th January 2005. The approval
does not commit any shareholder in Galaxy to dispose of Its interast to KWCM or any other person. it does not commit KWCM or an?' gther person to acquire
any interest in Galaxy. Such approval sought and obtained by Galaxy is a preliminary step to any possible negotiation, without which none can commence.

Negotiations relating to the possible Iinjection have not yat commenced. Management of KWCM has almost complstad the praliminary conceptual! studlss
which include resaarch on the maerket, studlas of different tinancing methods and structure, and technical studies as to the executlon and implamentation
steps of the transaction. Managemant of KWCM expects to seek from its board in dus course a mandate to enter into negotiations for the posslble acquisition
of shares In Galaxy I and when Galaxy shareholders Indicate that they wili entertaln such negotiations. KWCM has been informed that no negotiation will
gommence until such time as further Internal giscussions between the Galaxy shareholders have taken place. KWCM cannot predict If and when that will
appen.

The timetable for the possible Injection is yet to be decided and negotlations may or may not commence and |f commenced may or may not lead to a
transaction. In the event that a transaction materialises, KWI{H and KWCM will make approprlate announcements as required by the Listing Rules. Invastors
are advised to exercise caution in doaling In the shares of KWCM and KWIH,

KWIH wishes to refer also to s announcement of 17th December 2004 and states that it has now exacuted agreements far its participation In a jo!nt venture
propetty development company in Mainiand China which constitutes a discloseable transaclion of KWIH under the Listing Rules and Is entirely unrelated to
the possible transaction relating to Galaxy. A ssparate announcement by KWIH will be made as socon as practicable and Investors should read that
announcemant when it Is published.

Save for tha activitiss mentionad abova and praviously disclosed by KWIH in the Announcements and to be the subject of the separats announcamant of
KWIH referrad to above, the KWIH Board confirms that there are prasently no negotlatlons or agreemants reiating to Intended acquisitions or realisations
relaung to KWiH which are disclogeable under Rule 13.23 of the Listing Rules, nelthar Is the KWIH Board awara of any matter discloseable under lhegeneml
obligation impogsed on KWIH by Rule 13.09 of tha Listing Rules, which is or may be of a price-sensitive nature, The directors of KWIH individually and jointly
accept responsibility for the accuracy of thls announcement, . .

The Directors of KWCM have noted the recent increases In the price and trading volume of the shares of KWCM and wish to state that they are not awara of
any other possibie rsasons for such Incraases.

Save for the activities mentioned abave and prevlcuslr disclosed In the Announcaments, the KWCM Board conlirms that there are presently no negcﬂatlons
or agraements relating to intended acqulisitions or reallsations relating to KWCM which are discloseable under Rule 13,23 of the Listing Rules, nelther is the .
KWCM Board aware of any matter disclogeable under the gensral obligation Imposed on KWCM by Rule 13.08 of the Listing Rules, which is or may bs of a
price sensitive nature. The directors of KWCM indlvidually and jointly accept responsibliity for the accuracy of thls announcement. :

Trading in the shares of KWiH and KWCM on the Stock Exchange was sum)ended at the request of KWIH and KWCM with eftect from 10:51 a.m, on 21st
January 2005 pending the reiease of this announcament. KWIiH and KWCM have applled for a rasumption of trading in their sharss with effect from 9:30
a.m. on 3rd February 2005. Further announcements wlilf be made if and when appropriate.

As at the date of this announcement, the exscutive directors of KWIH are Dr. Lul Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lul Yiu Tung, Mr, Lennon Lun Tsan Kau, Mr. Eddie
Hut Ki On, Mr. Willlam Lo Chi Chun? and Mrs. Paddy Tana Lui Wal Yu; the non-axeculive diractor of KWIH is Mr. Michael Leung Man Kin and the
indepandent non-executive directors of KWIH are Sir David Akers-Jones, Dr. Phillp Wong Kin Hang, Dr. Leo Les Tung Ha!, Dr. Robin Chan Yau, Hing, 0.
Charles Cheung Wal Bun and Mr, Robert George Nisld, .

As al the date of this announcement, the oxecutive diractors of KWCM ara Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lul Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan Kal Nang, Mr. Wiillam Lo
Chi Chung, Ms. Paddy Tang Lul Wal Yu and Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Ksung; the non-executive dirsctor of KWCM [s Mr. Moges Cheng Mo Chi and lhe
independent non-executlve directors of KWCM are Dr. Charles Cheung Wal Bun, Mr. Jamas Ross Ancell and Dr. Willlam Yip Shue Lam.

By Order of the Board of . B8y Order of the Board of
K. Wah internaticnel Moldings Limited . K. Wah Construction Meterials Limited
Steven Tong Kul Nam . ) Steven Tang Kul Nam
Company Sacrelary ! Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 2nd February 2006
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Tha Stock Exchgngs. of Hong ‘Ko.n'g Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this annot ment, makes no representation as to its accuracy ar complsteness
anad expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever lor any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

K. WAH INTERNATIONAL - K. WAH CONSTRUCTION
HOLDINGS LIMITED MATERIALS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
{Stock Code: 173) {Stock Code: 27)
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Joint Announcement

The KWiH Board and the KWCM Board refer to the Announcementsand wish to report that KWCM has been informed by Galaxy that
approval -has been obtained {rom the Macau Government for the possible injection into KWCM of a majority interest in Galaxy. Galaxy
* | is one of the gaming concesslonaries which Is engaging in gaming and aother related business {including hotel, resort and
entertainment business) in Macau. While discussion relating to the possible injection has not yet commenced, KWCM was further
informed that it can only commence alter such time as further discussions among the Galaxy shareholders have taken place.

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board wish to state that notwithstanding such approval, the preliminary conceptual studies by
KWCM relating to the feasibility of the possible injection of certain Macau gaming business which may include other related business
(including hotel, -resort and entertainment business) are progressing and have yet to be completed. The timetable for the possible
injection Is yet to be decided. The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board wish to clarify that such preliminary conceptual studies
may or may not lead to a transaction. In the event that such transaction materialises, KWIH and KWCM will make appropriate
announcements as reguired by the Listing Rules. : o

The respective shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and potential investors are advised to exercise caution when dealing in the
shares of KWIH and KWCM. ..

Tradings in the shares of KWIH and KWCM on the Stock Exchange were suspended at the respective requests of KWIH and KWCM
with effect from 9:30 a.m. on 20 January 2005 pending the release of this announcement. KWIH and KWCM have applied for a
resumption of fradings in their shares with effect from 9:30 a.m. on 21 January 2005.. :

The board of directors {("KWIH Board"} of K. Wah International Holdings Limited (*KWIH") and the board of directors ("KWCM Board") of
K. Wah Construction Materials Limited (“KWCM") refer to the joint announcements made by KWIH and KWCM on 7 and 14 October
2004, and 6 and 11 January 2005 and the announcement made by KWCM on 14 January 2005 {the “Announcements”) and wish to
report that KWCM has been informed by Galaxy Casino S.A., Macau (*Galaxy”) that approval has been obtained from the Macau
Government for the possible injection into KWCM of a majority interest in Galaxy. Galaxy Is one of the gaming concessionarles which is
engaging in gaming and other related business (including hotel, resort and entertainment business) in Macau. While discussion relating
to the possible injection has not yet commenced, KWCM was further informed that it can only commences after such time as further
discussions between the Galaxy shareholders have taken place. : ’ :

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board wish to state that notwithstanding such approval, the preliminary conceptual studies' by KWCM
- relating to the feasibility of the possible injection of certain Macau gaming business which may include other related business {including
hotel, resort and entertainment business) are progressing and have yet 1o be completed. The timetable for the possible injection is yet to
be decided. The KWiH Board and the KWCM Board wish to clarify that such preliminary conceptual studies may or may not lead
to a transaction. In the event that such transaction materialises, KWIH and KWCM will make appropriate announcements as required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock.Exthange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Save for the activities mentioned above and previously disclosed by KWiH on 17 December 2004 and in the Announcements, the KWIH
Board confirms that there are presently no negotiations or agreements telating to intended acquisitions or realisations relating to KWIH
which are discloseable under Rule 13.23 of the Listing Rules, neither is the KWIH Board aware of any matter discloseable under the
general obligation imposed on KWIH by Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules, which is or may be of a price-sensitive nature. The directors of
KWIH individually and jointly accept responsibility for the accuracy of this announcement. ’ . .

Save for the activities mentioned above and previously disclosed in the Announcements, the KWCM Board confirms that there are
presently no negotiations or agreements relating to intended acquisitions or realisations relating tc KWCM which dre discloseable under
Rule 13.23 of the Listing Rules, neither is the KWCM Board aware of any matter discloseablé under the general obligation imposed on
KWCM by Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules, which is or may be of a price-sensitive nature. The directars of KWCM individually and jointly
accept responsibility for the accuracy of this announcement. :

The respective shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and potential investors are advised to exercise caution when dealing In the
shares of KWIH and KWCHM.

Tradings in the shares of KWIH and KWCM on the Stock Exchange were suspended at the respective requests of KWIH and KWCM with
effect from 9:30 a.m. on 20 January 2005 pending the release of this announcement. KWIH and KWCM have applied for a resumption of
tradings in theif shares with effect from 8:30 a.m. on 21 January 2005.- :

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWIH are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Lennon Lun
Tsan Kau, Mr. Eddie Hui Ki On, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung and Mrs. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu; the non-executive director of KWIiH is Mr.
Michael Leung Man Kin and the independent ngn-executive directors of KWIH are Sir David Akers-Jones, Dr. Philip Wong Kin Hang, Dr.
Leo tee Tung Hai, Dr. Robin Chan Yau Hing, Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun and Mr. Robert George Nield.

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWCM are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan Kai
Nang, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung, Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu and Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung; the non-executive director ot KWCM is
Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi and the independent non-executive directors of KWCM are Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun, Mr. James Ross
Ancell and Dr. William Yip Shue Lam, .

By Order of the Board of . By Order of the Board of
K. Wah international Holdings Limited K. Wah Construction Materials Limited
Sieven Toeng Kui Nam Steven-Tong Kui Nam
Company Secrelary Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 20 January 2005
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“SOUTH:CHINA'MORNING POS:

The Stock _Exch.ange of Hor?g Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, makes no representation as to }ls accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaims any lability whatsqever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

K. WAH iNTERNATIONAL K. WAH CONSTRUCTION
HOLDINGS LIMITED MATERIALS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) {incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
{Stock Code: 173) . . (Stock Code: 27)

i

- Joint Announcement

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board refer to the Announcements and wish to report that KWCM has been informed by Galaxy that
approval has been abtainad from the Macau Goverriment for the possible injection into KWCM of a majority Interest in Galaxy. Galaxy is
ene of the gaming concessionaries which is engaging in gaming and other related business (including hotel, resort and entertainment
buslness) In Macau. While discussion rélating to the possible injection has not yet commenced, KWCM was further informed that It can
only commerice after such time as further discussions among the Galaxy shareholders have taken place.

The KWiH Board and the KWCM Board wish'to state that notwithstanding such approval, the preliminary conceptual studies by KWCM
relating to the feasibllity of the possible injection of certain Macau gaming business which may include other related business (including
hotel, resort and entertainment business) are progressing and have yet to be completed. The timetabie for the possible injection is ye! 1o
be decided. The KWIH Board and the KWWCM Board wish to clarify that such preliminary conceptual studies may or may not lead
t;: aLtrans,agti!on. In the event that such transacticnt materialises, KWtH and KWCM will make appropriate announcements as required by
.. | the Listing Rules. ’ ;o : ' ' co ’

The. respective sharehoiders of KWIH and KWCM and potential investors .are advised to exercise caution when dealing In the
shares of KWIH and KWCM. : . : . . :

Tradings in the shares of KWIH and KWCM on the Stock Exchange were suspended at the respéctive requests of KWIH and KWCM with
4 effect from 2:30 a.m. on 20 January- 2005 pending the release of this announcement. KWIH and KWCM-have applied for a resumption of
tradings in their shares with effect from 9:30 a.m. on 21 January 2005. X . . -

v

The board of directors ("KWIH Board™) ot K. Wah International Holdings Limited ("KWIH") and the board of directors (*KWCM Board™) of K.

- Wah Construction Materials Limited (“KWCM") refer to the joint anncuncements made by KWIH and KWCM on 7 and 14 October 2004, and 6
.and 11 January 2005 and the announcement made by KWCM on 14 Janyary 2005 (the “Announcements”} and wish to report that KWCM has
been informed by Galaxy Casino S.A., Macau ("Galaxy") that approval has been chtained from the Macau Government for the possible
injection into KWCM of a majority interest in Galaxy. Galaxy Is one of the gaming concessionaries which is engaging In gaming and other
related business (including hotel, resort and entertainment business) in Macau. While discussion relating to the possible injection has not yet
commenced, KWCM was further informed that it can only commence after such time as further discussions between the Galaxy shareholders
have taken place. : : : -

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board wish to state that notwithstanding such approval,.the preliminary conceptual studies by KWCM
relating to the feasibility of the possible injection of certain Macau gaming business which may include other related business (including
hotel, resort and entertainment business) are progressing and have yet to be completed. The timetable for the possible injection is yet 10 be
decided. The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board- wish to clarify that such preliminary conceptual studles may or may not lead to a
transaction. In the event that such fransaction materialises, KWIH and KWCM will make appropriate’ announcements as required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules™) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). .

Save for the activities mentioned above and previously disclosed by KWIH on 17 December 2004 and in the Announcements, the KV\{lH__
Board confirms that there are presently no negotiations or agreements-relating to Intended acquisitions or realisations relating to KWIH which -
. are .discloseable under Rule 13.23 of the Listing Rules, neither is the KWIH Board aware of any matter discloseable under the general
cbligation imposed on KWIH by Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules, which is or mdy be of a price-sensitive nature. The directors af KWIH
individually and jointly accept responsibility for the accuracy of this announcement. . . C

Save for the activities mentioned above and previously disclosed in the Announcements, the KWCM Board confirms that there are presently
no negotiations or agreements relating to intended acquisitions or realisations relating 1o KWCM which are discloseable under Rule 13.23 of
the Listing Rules, neither is the KWCM Board aware of any matter discloseable under the general obligation imposed on KWCM by Rule
13.09 of the Listing Rules, which is or may be of a price-sensitive nature. The directors of KWCM Individually and jeintly accept responsibility
for the accuracy of this annauncement. ’ Ve

" The respective shareﬁolders of KWIH and KWCM and potential investors are advised to exercise caution when dealing in the shares
of KWIH and KWCM. - i

_Tradings in the shares of KWIH and KWCM on the Stock Exchange were suspended at the respective requests of KWIH and KWCM with
effect from 9:30 a.m. on 20 January 2005 pending the release of this announcement. KWiH and KWCM have applied for a resumption of
tradings in their shares with effect from 9:30 a.m. on 21 January 2005. ' . . .

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWIH are Dr. Lul Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Len_non Lun_ Tsan
Kau, Mr. Eddie Hui Ki On, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung and Mrs. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu; the non-executive director of KWIH is Mr. Michael
Leung Man Kin and the independent non-execytive directors of KWIH aré Sir David Akers-Jones, Dr. Philip Wong Kin Hang. Dr. Leo Lee
Tung Hai, Dr. Robin Chan Yau Hing, Or. Charles Cheung Wai Bun and Mr. Robert George Nield. .

As at the date of this announcemient, the executive directors of KWCM are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis tui Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan Kai Nang,

~ Mr. Williamr Lo Chi Chung, Ms. Paddy Tang Lul Wai Yu and Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung; the non-executive director of KWCM is Mr. Moses
Cheng Mo Chi and the jndépendent non-executive directors of KWCM are Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun, Mr. James Ross Ancell and Dr.
William Yip Shue tam. ) . '

By Order of the Board of ) By Order of the Board of . -
K. Wah International Holdings Limited - ' K. Wah Construction Materials Limited
’ Steven Tong Kui Nam i ‘ Steven Tong Kui Nam

Company Secretary Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 20 January 2005
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K. WAH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with fimited tiabliity)
°  (Stock Code: 173)

The Board of Directors (the Board”} of K. Wah International
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is deeply saddened by the
passing away of Dr. Alex Wu Shu Chih, an independent non-
executive director of the Company, on 3th January, 2005.

Appointed to the Board in 1989, Dr. Wu will be remembered-
as a brifliant and enthusiastic leader for his insightful guidance

and valuable contribution to the Company throughout the past-
sixteen years.

The Board would like to extend heartfelt condolences to.
Dr. Wu's family.

By Order of ith_e Boeard
. Steven Tong Kul Nam .
- Company Secretary

Hong Keng, 12th January, 2005

As at the date of this announcement, the Executive Directors

are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Lennon Lun
Tsan Kau, Mr. Eddie Hui Ki On, kr. William Lo Chi Chung and
Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu; the Non-executive Director is Mr.
Michael Leung Man Kin and the Independent Non-executive
Directors are Sir David Akers-Jones, Dr, Philip Wong Kin Hang,
Dr. Leo Lee Tung Hai, Dr. Robin Chan Yau Hing, Dr. Charles
Cheung Wai Bun and Mr. Robert George Nield.
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"K. WAH INTERNATIONAL K. WAH CONSTRUCTION
HOLDINGS LIMITED MATERIALS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) ({Incorparated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 173) (Stock Code: 27)
Unusual Movement in Unusual Movement in
Price and Trading Volume Price and Trading Volume.

This announcement is made in relation to the recent decrease in price and increase in trading volume of the shares
in K. Wah iInternational Holdings Limited ("KWi{H"} and the recent decrease in price and increase in trading volume
of the shares in K. Wah Construction Materials Limited ("KWCM"}. : g

This statement is made at the request of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The directors of KWCM (the “KWCM Directors®} have noted the recent decrease in price and increase in trading
volume in the shares of KWCM and are not aware of any reasons for such unusual movement save as previously

disclosed by KWCM and KWIH jointly on 7 and 14 October 2004, and 6 January 2005 (collectively the *Joint
Announcements”). :

However KWIH and KWCM wish to state that the preliminary conceptual studies by KWCM relating to the feasibility of
the possible injection of certain Macau gaming business which may include other related business (including hotel,
resort and entertainment business) are progressing. KWIH and KWCM wish to further state that such preliminary
conceptual studies may or may not lead to a transacticn. In the event that such transaction materialises, KWiH and

KWCM will make appropriate announcements as required by the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on the’
Stock Exchange. :

The directors of KWIH (thé *KWIH Directors™) have noted the recent decrease in price and increase in trading volume
in the shares of KWIH {the *KWIH Shares™) and are mot aware of any reasons for such unusual movement save as
previously disclosed in the Joint Announcements and by KWIH on 17 December 2004.

However, KWIH wishes to point out that in the last two weeks, KW!H has received notices of conversion from holders
of 0.5% guaranteed converiible bonds due 2009 (the “Convertible Bonds") of aggregate principal amounts of
HK$352,760,000 to convert their Convertible Bonds into an aggregate of 156,782,216 KWIH Shares, representing
approximately 7.2% of the issued share capital of KWIH as énlarged by the said conversions. Pursuant to the terms of
the Convertible Bonds, KWIH Shares to be issued pursuant to the conversion of the Convertible Bonds shall be issued
within 21 days from the day (being a day, other than Saturday, which the Stock Exchange is open for business)
immediately following the date on which the conversion rights are exercised and at a ‘conversion price of HK$2.25 per
KWi{H Share. Terms of the Convertible Bonds are set out in the announcement of KWIH dated 25 February 2004.

Save as disclosed herein and previously disclosed in the Joint Announcements, the board of KWCM confirms that
there are presently no negotiations or agreements relating to intended acquisitions or realisations relating to . KWCM
which_are discloseable under Rule 13.23 of the Listing Rules, neither is the board of KWCM aware of any matter
discloseable under the general obligation imposed on KWCM by Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules, which is or may be of
a price-sensitive nature. The KWCM Directors individually and jointly accept responsibility for the accuracy of this
statement insofar as the same is relating to KWCM, : .

Save as disclosed herein and previously disclosed by KWIH on 17 December 2004 and the Joint Announcements, the
. board of KWIH canfirms that there are presently no negotiations or agreements relating to intended acquisitions or
realisations relating to KWIH which are discloseable under Rule 13.23 of the Listing Rules, neither is the board of
KWIH aware of any matter discloseable under the general obligation imposed on KWIH by Rule 13.09 of the Listing
Rules, which is or may be of a price-sensitive nature. The KWIH Directors individually and jointly accept responsibility
for the accuracy of this statement insofar as the same is relating to KWIH. )

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWIH are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung,
Mr. Lennon Lun Tsan Kau, Mr. Eddie Hui Ki On, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu; the non-
_executive director of KWIH is Mr. Michael Leung Man Kin; and the independent non-executive directors of KWIH are
Sir David Akers-Jones, Dr. Alex Wu Shu Chih, Dr. Philip Wong Kin Hang, Dr. Leo Lee Tung Hai, Dr. Robin Chan Yau
Hing, Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun and ‘Mr. Robert George Nield.

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWCM are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung,
Mr. Chan Kai Nang, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung, Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu and Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung; the .
non-execulive director of KWCM is Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi; and the independent non-execulive directors of KWCM
are Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun, Mr. James Ross Ancell and Dr. William Yip Shue Lam.

By Order of the Board . By Order of the Board

K. Wah International Holdings Limited K. Wah Construction Materials Limited
Steven Tong Kul Nam . Steven Tong Kui Nam
Company Secretary Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 11 January 2005
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K. WAH INTERNATIONAL K. WAH CONSTRUCTION
HOLDINGS LIMITED MATERIALS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) ' (tncorporated in Hong.Kong with limited liabiiity)
(Stock Code: 173) {Stock Code: 27)

Unusual Movement in Price and Trading Volume Unusual Movement in Price and Trading Volume

This announcement is made in relation to the recent decrease in price and increase in tradmg volume of the shares
in K. Wah International Holdings Limited (“KWIH") and the recent decrease in price and increase in trading volume of
the shares in K. Wah Construction Materials lelted {*“KWCM").

This statement is made at the request of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

The directors of KWCM (the “KWCM Directors”) have noted the recent decrease in price and increase in trading volume
in the shares of KWCM and are not aware of any reasons for such unusual movement save as previously disclosed by
KWCM and KWIH jointly on 7 and 14 October 2004, and 6 January 2005 (collectively the “Joiat Announcements”).

However KWIM and KWCM wish to-state that the preliminary conceptual studies hy KWCM relating to the feasibility of
the ‘possible injection of certain Macau gaming business which may include other related business (including hotel,
resort and entertainment business) are progressing. KWIH and KWCM wish to further state that such preliminary
conceptual studies may or may not fead to a transaction. In the event that such transaction materialises, KWIH and

KWCM will make appropnate announcements as requ:red by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stack
Exchange.

The directors of KWIH (the "KW!H Directors™) have noted the recent decrease in price and increase in tradmg volume in
the shares of KWIH (the “KWIH Shares”) and are not aware of any reasons for such unusual movement save as
previously disclosed in the Joint Announcements and-by KWIH on 17 December 2004.

However, KWIH wishes to point out that in the last two weeks, KWIH has received naotices of conversion from holders of
0.5% guaranteed -.convertible bonds due 2009 (the "Convertlble Bonds") of aggregate principal amounts of
HK$352,760,000 to convert their Convertible Bonds into an aggregate of 156,782,216 KWIH Shares, representing
approximately 7.2% of the issued share capital of KWIH as enlarged by the said conversions. Pursuant to the terms of
the Convertible Bonds, KWIH Shares to be issued pursuant to the conversion of the Cenvertible Bonds shall be issued
within 21 days from the day (being a day, other than Saturday, which the Stock Exchange is open for business)
immediately following the date on which the conversion rights are exercised and at a conversion price of HK$2.25 per
KWIH Share. Terms of the Convertible Bonds are set out in the announcement of KWIH dated 25 February 2004,

Save as disclosed herein and previously disclosed in the Joint Announcements, the ‘board of KWCM confirms that: ‘there
are presently no negotiations.or agreements relating {o intended acquisitions or realisations relating to KWCM whieh
are discloseable under Rule 13.23 of the Listing Rules, neither is the board of KWCM aware of any matter discloseable
under the general obligation imposed on KWCM by Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules, which is or may be of a price-

sensitive nature. The KWCM Directors individually and jointly accept responsxblhty for the accuracy of this -statement
insofar as the same is relating to KWCM.

Save as disclosed herein and previously dnsclosed by KWIH on 17 .December 2004 and the Joint Anhouncements, the
board of KWIM confirms that there are presently no negotiations or agreements relating to intended acquisitions or
realisations relating to KWIH whijch are discloseable under Rule 13.23 of the Listing Rules, neither is the board of KWIH

aware of any matter discioseable under the general obligation imposed on KWIH by Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules,

which is or may be of a price-sensitive nature. The. KWIH Directors mlelduaHy and jointly accept responsibility for the
accuracy of this statement insofar as the same is relating to KWiH.

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWIH are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francns Lui Yiu Tung,
Mr. Lennon Lun Tsan Kau, Mr. Eddie Hui Ki On, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu; the non-
executive director of KWIH is Mr. Michael Leung Man Kin; and the independent non-executive directors of KWIH are Sir-
David Akers-Jones, Dr. Alex Wu Shu Chih, Dr. Philip Wong Kin Hang, Dr.. Leo Lee Tung Hai, Dr. Robin Chan Yau Hing,
Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun and Mr. Robert George Nield.

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWCM are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung,
Mr. Chan Kai Nang, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung, Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu and Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung; the non-
executive director of KWCM is Mr, Moses Cheng Mo Chi; and the independent non-executive directors of KWCM are
Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun, Mr. James Ross Ancell and Dr. William Y|p Shue Lam.

By Order of the Board By QOcder of the Board
K. Wah International Holdings Limited K. Wah Construction Materials Limited
" Steven Tong.Kui Nam . Steven Tong Kui Nam
Company Secretary Company Secretary

Hona Kann. 11 Januarv 2005
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K. WAH INTERNATIONAL K. WAH CONSTRUCTION

HOLDINGS LIMITED MATERIALS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited fiability) (incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liabliity)
{Stock Code: 173) {Stock Code: 27)

JOINT CLARIFICATION ANNOUNCEMENT

The KWCM Board has noted that recent increases in the price and trading volume of
the shares of KWCM and wish to state that it Is not aware of any reasons for such
Increases save as disclosed herein.

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board refer to an‘ article appearing in the Sing Pao

of & January 2005 In relation {o the purported imecnon of certain Macau gammg
business and hotel business into KWCM.

The KWH Board and the KWCM Board wouild like to refer to the Announcements and
wish to 'state that the gaming business as referred to in the Announcements may
include other related business (including hotel, resort and entertainment business).
The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board alsc wish to state that there have been no
developments that should be brought to the attention of the respective shareholders
of KWIH and KWCM and potential investors.

The respective shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and potantial investors are advised
to exercise extreme caution when dealing in the shares of KWIH and KWCM.

This statement is made at the request ;:f The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limlted.

The board of directers (*KWCM Board”) of K. Wah Construction Materials Limited
("KWCM") has noted that recent increases in the price and trading volume of the shares
of KWCM and wish to state that it is not aware of any reasons for such igpcreases save
as disclosed hersin. i -

The board of directors (“KWIH Beard”) of K. Wah International Holdmgs Limited
{*KWIH") and the KWCM Board refer to an article appearing in the Sing Pao of 6
January 2005 in relation to the purported injection of certain Macau gaming business
and hotel business into KWCM. .

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board would like to refer to the jolnt clarification
announcements of KWIH and KWCM respectively dated 7 Qctober 2004 and 14 October
2004 {“*Anriouncements™) and wish to state that the gaming business as reterred to in
the Announcements may include other related business (including hotel, resort and
entertainment business). The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board also wish {o state that
there have been no developments that should be brought ta the attention of the
respective shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and potential Investors. -

Save as dxsclosed above and in the Announcements, the KWCM Board also ccnflrms
that there are no negotiations or agreements relating to Intended acquisitions or
realisations which are discloseable under rule 13.23, neither is the KWCM Board aware
of any matter discloseable under the general obligation Imposed by rule 13.08, which Is
or may be of a price-sensitive nature.

- The respective sharebolders of KWIH and KWCM and potential Investors are advised to
exercise exireme caution when dealing In the shares of KWiIH and KWCM.

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWIH are Dr. Lui. Che
Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Lennon Lun Tsan Kau, Mr. Eddie Hui Ki On, Mr.
William Lo Chi-Chung and Mrs. Paddy Tang Lul Wai Yu; the non-executive director is
Mr. Michael Leung Man Kin; and the independent non-executive directors are Sir David
Akers-Jones, Dr. Alex Wu Shu Chih, Dr. Philip Wang Kin Hang, Dr. Leo Lee Tung Hal,
Dr. Robin Chan Yau Hing, Dr. Charles Cheung Wal Bun and Mr. Robert George Nieid.

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWCM -are Dr. Lui Che
Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan Kal Nang, M. William Lo Chi Chung, Ms.
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu and Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung; the non-executive directar is
Mr. Moses Cheng Mc Chi; and the independent non-executive directors are Dr, Chatles
Cheung Wai Bun, Mr, James Ross Ancell and Dr, William Yip Shue Lam.

By Order af the Board of By Order of the Board of
K. Wah International Holdings Limited K. Wah Construction Materials Limited
Steven Tong Kui Nam Steven Tong Kui Nam
Company Secretary Company Secrefary -

Hong Kong, & January 2005
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ONDAY:EDECEMBER 2 B
K. WAH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorperated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stack Code: 173)

. ANNOUNCEMENT =
_ UNUSUAL VOLUME MOVEMENT °

The Company has noted the récent increase in the trading volume of
the shares of the Company and wishes {0 state that it is not aware
of any reasens for such increase.’ : B

The -Company wishes to confirm- that it is currently in confidential
negotiations -with parties who -are not connected persons -of the
Company for the participation in - a Cjoint venture property
development. company in Malnland China. However, no definitive
" agreement has yet been signed-by the parties and there can be no
assurance . that any such agreement will be signed. Further
anncuncements will be made as .and when appropriate in the
event that such project materialises, ’ : )

_ This statement is made at 'the _reqqé‘st of The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited. :

K. Wah International Holdings Limited (“the Company*”) has noted the
recent increase in ‘the trading volume of the shares of the Company and

wishes to state that it is not aware of any reasons for such increase.

The -Company wishes to confirm that it is curfently in confidential
negotiations " with. parties who are not. connected persons of the

. Company for the participation in a joint, venture property development

company in Mainland China. However, no definitive agreement has yet

been-signed by the parties and there can be no assurance that any

such agreement will be signed. Further announcements will be made as
and when appropriate in the event that such project-materialises.

Save as disclosed abéve and In’ the ‘Company's announcements
respectively dated 7th October 2004 and 14th October 2004, the

Company also confirms that, there are no negotiations or agreements *
" relating to_ intended acquisitions ‘or realisations which are discloseable

under rule 13.23, neither is the Board of Directors of the -Company

. "aware of any matter discloseable under the general obligation imposed ’

by ‘rule 13.09, which is or may .be of a pricé-sensitive hature.

“Shareholders of the Company and potential ‘investors are advised to 1

exercise caution. when dealing in the shares of the Company.

‘Made by the_order of the Board of the Company the-directors of which |
"5 individually and_jointly’ accept responsibility for the accuracy of ‘this - -

announcement.

As at the date of this’ énhouncemem, the executive directors of the
Company are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Lennon

~ Lun Tsan Kau, Mr. Eddie Hui Ki On, Mr. William Lo Chi~Chung and Ms.

Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu. The non-executive director is Mr. Michael
Leung Man Kin and the independent hon-executive directors are Sir
David Akers-Jones, Dr. Alex Wu Shu Chih, Dr. Philip Wong Kin Hang,

Dr. Lec Lee Tung Hai, Dr. Robin Chan Yau Hing, Dr. Charles Cheung .

Wal Bun and Mr. Robert George Nield.

By Order of the Board
Steven Tong
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 17th December 2004
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K. WAH INTERNATIONAL K. WAH CONSTRUCTION
HOLDINGS LIMITED MATERIALS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (incorporated in Hor;g Kong with_limited liability)

{Stock Code: 173) ) . ' {Stock ‘Code: Zﬂ

JOINT CLARIFICATION ANNCUNCEMENT

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board refer to certain articles appearing in .
the East Week (Issue 59) of 13 October 2004 and the Sing Tao Daily of 13 | § - "
October 2004 in relation to the studies of the injection of certain gaming :
'k | business into KWCM and the purported dlsposal of the core business of
: KWCM to a third party. .

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board wouid I|ke to. refer to the joint
) clarification announcement of KWIH and KWCM dated 7 October 2004 and
;h wish {o state that there have been no developments that should be brought to
i the attention of the respective shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and
potential investors.

“The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board ‘also' wish to state that there are no
1 plans to dispose of the core business of KWCM {o dny person.

The respactive shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and potential investors are
advised to exercise extreme caution when dealing.in the shares of KWIH and

H Board") of K:"Wah International Holdings Limite

dlrectors ("KWCM_ Board") of K. Wah Construction

g appearing in the East Wesd

. ‘ao'Daily of 13 October 2004 in. .

" refation to the studles of the injection of certam gaming business into KWCM
and the purpor‘(ed disposal of the core business of KWCM to a third party.

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board” would like to refer to the joint
clarification announcement of KWIH. and KWCM dated 7 October 2004 and
wish to state that there have been no. developments that should be brought to,
the attention of the respective shareholders af KWIH and KWCM .and potential
investors..

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board also wish to state that there are no
-plans to dispose of the core business of KWCM to any person. :

The respective shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and potential investors are'
advised {o exercise extreme caution when dealing.in the shares of KWIH and
KWCM.

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWIH are Dr. Lui
Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Lennon Lun Tsan Kau, Mr. Eddie Hui Ki
On, Mr. Wiliam Lo Chi Chung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu. The non-
.executive director is Mr. Michael Leung Man Kin and the independent non-
executive directors are Sir David Akers-Jones, Dr. Alex Wu Shu Chih, Dr. Philip
Wong Kin Hang, Dr. Leo Lee Tung Hai, Dr. Robin Chan Yau Hing, Dr. Charles.
Cheung Wai Bun and Mr. Robert George Nield. -

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWCM are Dr. i
Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis LuiYiu Tung, Mr. Chan Kai Nang, Mr. William Lo Chi . ] .. o= w4
Chung, Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu and Mr, Joseph Chee Ying Keung. The
independent non-executive directors are Dr. Charles Cheung. Wai Bun, Mr.
Moses Cheng Mo Chi and Mr. James Ross Ancell.

1

{

:

By Order of the Board of By Order of the Board of £
K. Wah International ' K. Wah Construction f
Hoidings Limited © Materials Limited !
Steven Tong Kui Nam Steven Tong Kui Nam .
Secretary - - Secretary ;

Hong Kong, 14 Oqgober 2004. - -
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K. WAH INTERNATIONAL K. WAH CbNSTRUCTION

HOLDINGS LIMITED ‘MATERIALS LIMITED
‘(incorporated in Bermudfa with limited liability} - (incorporated in Hong Kong with limited fiability)
(Stock Code: 173) : " (Stock Code: 27)

Ty

JOINT CLARIFICATION ANNOUNCEMENT

The KWiH Board and the KWCM Board refer to certain. articles appearing in the |
East Week (Issug 59) of 13 October 2004 and the Sing Tao Daily of 13 October
2004 in relation to the studies of the injection. of certain gaming business into
KWCM and the purported disposal of the core business of KWCM to a third
party. :

The KW H Board and the KWCM Board would like to refer to thejoint clarification

announcement of KWIH and KWCM dated 7 October 2004 and wish to state that

there have been no developments that should be brought to the attention of the |
respeciive shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and potential investors,” =~

:'.fu‘l'-‘he KWIH Board and the KWCM Board also wish to state that there are no blans
‘.-:"’_'»‘to..dispose of the core business of KWCM to any person.

| The respective shareholders of KWIH and KWCM . and potential investors are
advised to exercise extreme caution when dealing in the shares of KWIH and
KWCM.

NG KWIH") and the board tors (“KWCM  Boa
.refer. to..certain.:articles:

g~ ; .
to the studies of the lnjectlon of certam gaming - busmess into’ KWCM and‘the_
purporied disposal of the core busmess of KWCM:to: a third party. : )

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board would like to refer to the joint clarification
annouricement of KWIH and KWCM dated 7 October 2004 and wish to state that -
there have been no. developments that should be brought to the attention of the - R
respective shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and potential investors. ST

The KWiH Board and the KWCM Board aiso wish 'to state that there are no plans to
dispose of the core business of KWCM to any -person. _ N A

N : 4
The respective shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and potentral investors are : ’
advised fo exercise exireme caution when dealing in the shares of KWIH and : H
KWCM . i

As a't the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWIH are Dr. Lui
Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Lennon Lun Tsan Kau, Mr. Eddie Hui Ki g
On, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu. The non-executive C
director is Mr. Michael Leung Man Kin and the independent non-executive directors
are Sir David Akers-Jones, Dr. Alex Wy Shu Chih, Dr. Philip Wong Kin Hang, Dr. - | )
Leo Lee Tung Hai, Dr. Robin Chan Yau ng, Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun and Mr.
Robert George Nield.

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWCM are Dr.'Lui
Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung,'Mr. Chan Kai Nang, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung, -
Ms. Pedoy Tang Lui Wai Yu and Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung. The independent '~
non-executive directors are Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun, Mr. Mcses Cheng Mo Chi* -~
] and Mt. James Ross Ancell.

By Order of the Board of ‘ By Order of the Board of
K. Wah international K. Wah Construction
. ‘Holdings Limited Materials Limited
Steven Tong Kui Nam - Steven Tong Kui Nam
Secretary " ¢ Secretary

Hang Kong, 14 October 2004 *
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October 12, 2004 The Standard

Notices B-30

K. WAH CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS LIIMITED__

{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
{Stock Code : 27)

INTERIM SCRIP DIVIDEND WITH CASH OPTION
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE 2004

The discounted market value of a share of the Company for the purpose of
calculating the number of new shares to be allotted to the shareholders of the
Company as the interim scnp dividend for the six months ended 30th June 2004
is HK$1.6093.

Further 1o the circular to sharéholders of K. Wah Construction Materials Limited
(the “Company")‘dated 4th October 2004 deseribing arrangements for the payment
of the interim scrip dividend ‘of HK$0.01 per ordinary share of HK$0.10 each of the
Company (a “Share”), the Company announces that for the purpose of calculating
the number of Shares to be alilotted by way of scrip dividend, the dtscounted market
value of a Share is HK$1 6093.

The discounted market value is HK$1.6093, being the everage of the clesihg prices
of one Share on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the 5 trading days

- from 5th October 2004 to 11th October 2004, both days inclusive, which was

HK$1.694, less five per cent discount, rounding down such flgure to four decimat
places as stated in the circular of the Company dated 4th October 2004.

Accordingly, under-the scrip dividend anengements. shareholders will receive the
following number of Shares as scrip dividend on that part of their shareholdings in

’ respect of which they have not made cash electsons

Mumber of Shares held o
on 4th October 2004 for which X . HKgo.01
cash election is not made : . HK$1.6093"

The new Shares to be issued pursuant to the scrip dividend arrangements will rank
pari passu in all respects with- the existing issued Shares, except for the interim’
dividend for the six months ended 30th June 2004, and will rank in full for all future
dividends and dlstrlbunons which may be declared, made or paid.

. Fractional entitiements to Shares wiil be dlsregarded and the benem thereot will

"accrue to-the Cempany N
:It is expected ‘that share certificates in ‘respect of the Shares to be a)lotted as scrip

dividend and dividend warrants of HK$0.01 per-Share wﬂl be posted to shareholders :

at their own risk on 12th November 2004.

Shareholders who wish to receive all or part of their interim dividend in cash in lieu
of new Shares are reminded to complete the Form of Election and lodge it with the-
Company’s ‘Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Fiocor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong

Kong not lzter than.4:00 p:m. on 29th October 2004. Dealings in.the new Shares to
be aliotted as the interim scrip dividend will commence on 15th November 2004.

Appiication has been made to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong lelted for the .-

listing of and permission to deal in the- new Shares.

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors-of the Company are
Dr. Lut Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan Kai Nang, Mr. Wiltiam.Lo Chi
Chung, Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu and Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung. The
independent non-executive directors of the Campany are. Dr. Charles Cheung Wai
Bun, Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi and Mr. James Ross Ancell.. 1

By Order of the Board
Steven Tong Kui Nam
. . Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 11th October 2004
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October 8, 2004 The Standard

Notices B-31

K. WAH INTERNATIONAL K. WAH CONSTRUCTION

HOLDINGS LIMITED . MATERIALS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with- limited fiability) (incorparated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
{Stock Code: 173) © . (Stock Code: 27)

JOINT CLARIFICATION ANNGUNCEMENT

N

The KWiH Board has noted the recent increase in the trading volume of the shares of
KWIH and the KWCM Board has nated the recent increases in the price and trading -
volume of the shares of KWCM. The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board wish to state
_that the KWIH Board and the KWCM Board are not aware of any reasons for such
increases save as disclosed herain.

The KWiH Board and the KWCM Board also refer to certain statements made in’
newspaper articles published on 7 October 2004 speculating that the Controlling
Shareholder may inject certain Macau gaming business into KWIH or KWCM and wish
to state that thera are no negotiations or agresments relating to the purported -
transaction but that preliminary conceptual studies relating tc the teasibility. of such a
transaction is being carried out by KWCM. KWIH and KWCM wish to further clarify that
such preliminary studies may or may not lead to a transaction. In the event that a
transaction materialises, KWIH and KWCM will make appropriate announcements as
required by the Listing Flules

The respective shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and potential investors are advised to
exercise ‘caution when dealing in the shares of KWIH and KWCM

This announcement is made at'the request of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

{*Stock Exchange ).

The board of dlrectors {("KWIH Board”) of K. Wah International Holdings L{mlted (*KWIH")
has naoted the recent increase in the trading valume af the shares of KWIH and the board of
directors {(*KWCM Board”) of K. Wah Construction Materials -Limited {("KWCM®) has noted
the recent increases in the price and irading volume of the shares of KWCM. The KWIH

Board and the KWCM Board wish to state that the KWiH Board and the KWCM Boa(d arg-

not aware of any rezsons for such increases save as disclosad herain.

The KWIH Board and the KWCM Board aisao refer to certain.statements made in newspaper
articles published on 7 October 2004 speculating that Dr. Lui Che Woo, the Chairman and
Controliing Sharehoider of both KWIH and KWCM (“the Controlling Shareholder”) may
inject cartain Macau gaming business intoc KWIH or KWCM. The KWIH Board and the
KWCM Board wish to state that there are no negotiations br agreements relating to the
‘purparted transaction but that preliminary conceptual studies relating to the feasibility of
such a transaction is being carried aut by KWCM. KWIH and KWCM wish to turther clarify
that such preliminary studies may or may not lead to a transaction. In the event that a
transaction materialises, KWIH and KWCM will make appropriate announcemenis as
required by the Rules Govermng the Listing of Securmes an the Stock Exchange {*Listing
Rules”).

Save for the above. the KWIK Board and the KWCM Board also confirrn that there are no’

negotiations or agreements relating to. intended acquisitiorts -or realisations- which are
discloseable under rule 13.23, naither is the KWIH Board or the KWCM Board aware of any
matter discioseable under the general aobligation imposed by rule 13.09, which'is nr may be
of a price-sensitive nature. .

No directars of KWIH or KWCM have any dealings in the shares of KWIH or KWCM
respectively since the carrying out of prelimmary studies by KWCM

The respective shareholders of KWIH and KWCM and potentia! investors are adwsed to
exercise caution when dealing in the shares of KWIH and KWCM.- - . .

Made by the respective orders of the KW{H Board and the KWCM Board the directers of

which individually and jpintly accept responsibility for the accuracy of this announcement.

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWIH are Dr. Lui Che'Won,
Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Lennon Lun Tsan Kau, Mr. Eddie Hui Ki On, Mr. William Lo
Chi Chung and Mrs. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu. The non-exequtive director is Mr. Michael
Leung Man Kin and the independent non-executive directars are Sir David Akers-Jones, Dr.
Alex Wu Shu Chih, Dr. Philip Wong Kin Hang, Dr. Lec Lee Tung Hai, Dr. Robin Chan Yau
Hing, Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun and Mr. Robert George Nield. -
As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of KWCM are Dr. Lui Che
Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan Kai Nang, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung, Ms. Paddy
Tang Lui Wai Yu and Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung. The independent non-executive
directors are D1. Charies Cheung Wai Bun, Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi and Mr." James Ross
Ancell.

By Order of Xhe Board of . B By Orger of the Board of
K. Wah International Holdings Limited K. Wah Canstruction Materiais Limited
Steven Tong Kui Nam B Steven Tong Kui Nam

Sacretary Secretary

Hong Kang, 7 October 2004
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the actions to be taken, you
should consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor,
professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have soid or transferred all your shares in K. Wah Construction Materials Limited, you
should at once hand this circular and the accompanying Form of Election (if any) to the
purchaser or transferee or to the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or
transfer was etfected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
circular, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this circular.

K. WAH CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS LIMITED

{Incerporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
{Stock Code: 27)

Executive Directors: Registered Office:

Dr. Lui Che Woo, MBE, JP, LLD, DSSc (Chairman) 29th Floor, K. Wah Centre
Francis Lui Yiu Tung (Deputy Chairman) 191 Java Road

Chan Kai Nang (Managing Director) North Point

William Lo Chi Chung Hong Kong

Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu
Joseph Chee Ying Keung

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun, Jp
Moses Cheng Mo Chi, CBE, JpP

James Ross Ancell

4th October 2004
To the Shareholders,
Dear Sir or Madam,

interim Scrip Dividend with Cash Option
for the Six Months Ended 30th June 2004

Introduction

It was resolved by the directors of K. Wah Construction Materials Limited (the “Company”)
on 8th September 2004 that an interim dividend for the six months ended 30th June 2004 of
HK$0.01 per issued share of the Company of HK$0.10 each {(a “Share”) be paid to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members at the close of business on 4th October

—_1—



2004. 1t was also resolved that such dividend should be satisfied by way of scrip dividend by
an allotment of new Shares credited as fully paid in accordance with the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company and that shareholders may elect to receive cash wholly
or partly in lieu of the scrip dividend. The latest date on which transfers were accepted for
registration in order to qualify for the dividend was 24th September 2004.

Particulars of the interim Dividend
Shareholders have the following choices in respect of the interim dividend:

(i) an allotment of new Shares ("New Shares”) credited as fully paid and having an
aggregate discounted market value (as defined below) equal to the total amount of
interim dividend which shareholders could elect to receive in cash in respect of
HK$0.01 per Share, subject to any fractional entitlement being disregarded as
mentioned below; or

(i) interim dividend of HK$0.01 per Share in cash; or
(i) partly New Shares and partly cash.

For the purpose of calculating the number of New Shares to be allotted, the discounted
market value ("Discounted Market Value”) of a New Share means the average of the closing
prices of one Share on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the 5 trading days from
5th October 2004 to 11th October 2004 (both days inclusive), less 5% discount, rounding
down such figure to four decimal places. It will not be possible to determine until the close of
business on 11th October 2004 the exact number of New Shares to which a shareholder,
electing to receive New Shares, will be entitled. A press announcement of the Discounted
Market Value for the purpose of calculating the number of New Shares to be allotted by way
of scrip dividend will be made on 12th October 2004. The last day on which shareholders
will be entitled to make their choice of the above alternatives is 29th October 2004.

Accordingly, the number of New Shares which shareholders will receive, in respect of
the existing Shares registered in their names as at 4th October 2004 and for which elections
to receive the interim dividend in cash are not lodged with the Company’s share registrars on
or before 29th October 2004, will be calculated as follows:

Number of existing Shares held
Number of New Shares _ 5 4th October 2004 for which — x — HK$0.01
to be received Discounted Market Value

cash election is not made

The New Shares to be issued pursuant to the scrip dividend arrangements will rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing issued Shares, except for the interim dividend for the
six months ended 30th June 2004 and will rank in full for all future dividends and distributions
which may be declared, made or paid. No sharehoclder will be entitled to be issued any fraction
of a Share under the scrip dividend arrangements. Fractional entitlements to Shares will be
disregarded and the benefit thereof will accrue to the Company.

Advantage of the Scrip Dividend

The scrip dividend will enable shareholders to increase their holdings of Shares without
incurring dealing costs or stamp duty. The scrip dividend will also be to the advantage of the
Company because, to the extent that shareholders elect to receive New Shares, in whole or in
part, such cash as would otherwise have been paid to shareholders will be retained for use as
working capital by the Company.



Effect of the Scrip Dividend -

It elections to receive the interim dividend in cash were received in respect of all the
existing Shares registered as at 4th October 2004, the total cash dividend payable by the
Company would be approximately HK$12,833,000.

Shareholders of the Company should note that the scrip dividend may give rise to
notification requirements under the Securities and Futures Ordinance for those shareholders
who may have notifiable interests in the Company. Shareholders of the Company who are in
any doubt as to how these provisions may affect them are recommended to seek their own
professional advices.

Form of Election

Enclosed is a Form of Election. No action is required if you wish the interim dividend
for the six months ended 30th June 2004 which you are entitled to receive to be wholly
satisfied by an allotment of new Shares on the abovementioned basis. Otherwise, if you
wish to receive such dividend wholly in cash in lieu of New Shares, or partly in cash
"~ with the balance satisfied by an allotment of new Shares, you must complete the enclosed
Form of Election in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and lodge it with
the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Fioor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:00 p.m. on 29th October 2004. If you have signed the Form of Election but do not
specify the number of Shares in respect of which you wish to receive the dividend in cash or,
if you elect to receive the dividend in cash in respect of a greater number of Shares than your
registered holding, then in either case you will be deemed to have exercised your election to
receive the dividend in cash in lieu of New Shares in respect of all the Shares registered in
your name(s). No acknowledgement of receipt of Form of Election will be issued. The Form of
Election also enables you to elect to receive all future \dividends wholly in cash in lieu of New
Shares until notice in writing to cancel such election is received by the Registrars of the
Company. Permanent elections cannot be made in respect of part of your registered holding.

The Form of Election has not been sent to shareholders who have previously made a
permanent election to receive all future dividends wholly in cash. These shareholders will
receive cash in lieu of scrip dividend for all the Shares for the time being registered in their
names, without having to complete any further Form of Election. Any shareholder wishing to
change these existing permanent elections should contact the Company’'s Registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, before 4:00 p.m. on 29th October 2004.

Sharehoiders Resident Qutside Hong Kong

All shareholders resident outside Hong Kong should consult their bankers or other
professional advisers as to whether any governmental or other consents are required or. other
formalities need to be observed to enable them to receive Shares in satisfaction of interim
dividend for the six months ended 30th June 2004. No person receiving in any territory
outside Hong Kong a copy of this circular and/or a Form of Election may treat the same as an
invitation to him unless in the relevant territory such invitation could lawfully be made to him
without having to comply with any unfulfilled registration or other legal requirements.

As at 4th October 2004, the Company has overseas shareholders with registered
addresses in Australia, Canada, the People's Republic of China {"the PRC"), Spain, United
Kingdom, Macau, Malaysia, Pakistan, Singapore, Thailand, the United States and the British
Virgin Islands.



This circular and Form of Election will not be registered in Hong Kong or any other
jurisdiction. The Shares have not been registered under the applicable securities legislation of
any jurisdictions other than Hong Kong. The Company has made enquiries with legal advisers
where its overseas shareholders are based regarding legal restrictions and regulatory
requirements on participation of shareholders resident outside Hong Kong in the scrip dividend
arrangements as required by rule 13.36(2) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Since registration or filing or other procedures will
need to be carried out to comply with the relevant securities legislation of the United States
and the PRC, the Directors consider that it would be necessary and expedient to exclude
shareholders with registered addresses in the United States and the PRC (the "Excluded
Shareholders™”) from the scrip dividend arrangements in view that it would be impractical to
comply with such procedures in these countries given the small shareholder base. Accordingly,
Form of Election will not be sent to the Excluded Shareholders and they will only receive this
circular for information. Excluded Shareholders will receive their dividends wholly in cash.

Listing and Dealings

Shares issued by the Company have been admitted as eligible securities for deposit and
settlement in the Central Clearing and Settlement System established and operated by Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited. Dealings in the Company’s Shares may be settled
through the Central Clearing and Settlement System. Investors should seek the advice of their
stockbrokers or other professional advisers for details of these settlement arrangements and
how such arrangements will affect their rights and interests.

The Shares are listed and dealt in on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. On no
other stock exchanges are any part of the Shares or debt securities of the Company listed or
dealt in or on which listing or permission to deal is being or is proposed to be sought.
Application has been made to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the listing of and
permission to deal in the New Shares to be issued pursuant to the scrip dividend arrangements.
It is expected that share certificates in respect of such Shares and dividend warrants will be
posted at the risk of those entitled thereto on 12th November 2004 and dealings in such
Shares will commence on 15th November 2004. In the unlikely event that the New Shares are
not admitted to listing by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited before 12th November
2004, the Forms of Election will be disregarded and the full cash dividend will be paid to the
entitled shareholders according to their registered shareholdings.

Recommendation and Advice

It is the shareholders’ responsibility to decide in this regard whether or not to exercise
their rights to receive cash in lieu of the scrip dividend. Whether or not it is to the shareholders’
advantages to receive cash or New Shares, in whole or in part, depends upon their own
individual circumstances. The effect on the tax position of any shareholder will depend on that
shareholder’s particular circumstances. If you are in any doubt as to what to de, you should
consult your professional advisers. Shareholders who are trustees are recommended to take
professional advice as to whether the choice to receive cash or New Shares is within their
powers and as to its effect having regard to the terms of the relevant trust instrument.

Yours faithfully,
Dr. Lui Che Woo
Chairman



ABHEBEERBEFIERFHRREMEMARERTM - ROERRBEEF R
A FAEMEBEZBRAEFROERL -ALFACKEBEH AL BF LA RE
1336Q)%ZHE  MERBFHLUIIMMBEZBRRZEURREFBFTEREEREER
HmEBEEFEEUS BRI ERZ ERENELES AR FEREEN - BRlH
FEUFGEFRRTREMERESREN EEXLFEHRFTERE Y WEFS
WEFHEMBFCER  BRALELMBEEFAERUBRAEZHE TR R EE K+
B R (G A TEHRANER]) - Bt BAMNERATSEFBRABRNESE > MAEE
FEHERERSE - BRI E2HUREWREEZKRE -

ROLTREE

FARZBRBEFERATEFREEARAARLIREM I RGEERTNRESR
REERESF BREZIBRTREHERATUREARARS - MEEEBERLER
WZHHE RSB HEN B EEEMEE S E LR BEMERER -

BHEFEEHEZSNMAERLAALTEAHERE - ARARBREHESF LM
MoMEEEMEMBEEXZHF ETEHERE - TEETHFEHELMBRERZ S S
BITRHEEE - AHMERBURBAREREAIFETZHBR LT AMEEET 2B
ERXFEBEXZFTARLT  -FABARZERGZRELREENR _TFNE+
—AT_HEBFFTEREAL WEER > BHRHFARE BHZFROHTR_-FEFZN
F+—A+HHMABKER - MEBAATRZERLT > FER -FENE+—A+HH
FEFEHREXZHARAAMELT > BERBRBEIEEE  28AREZRENE
HERZEBINTFREZRRE -

HEER

EREFRT > BRRABSTELESN  BRERREUALETRORE  ARRZ
B - BREFAREHERIUBRRERHR > BEHEMNES > BEEALBZBILAHR -
EREFZHNZBRERLE > SRFHEMNBRME - WHRBRRZITHAEMEMH
FE# BMTZHEREM SRAGRAZKRABHEAEEBHMZER  UBEREFHR
FHARANZGEFIEECAEESKBESIFTELALEE -

lo S
Bk R B8
iR
BEHNEL
FE Y
—EEZENFE+AMNHAH



DBRREzZRE

MR REYH L2 TR - ETNE+ANBC B L Z2WEERG > HWERRS
ERRRE > BIAARAXIZRER B BEMA A HEY12,833,0007T o

FAABRREFEEURAEAIH— R (KR AERRER) AERERR
BEEEIZHEELBN -  ANARENBELEREHEFRIEZBHTMER > B#
AEREEMEZER -

BEXRK

MERMT SRS - BATFTERIBEERERFROAER BTIERUDZE
EZZZOFAAZTHELEANEAZZETHRE  ABANEREAFE - H#MH BT
BR2RURRSURBTIREAREABIURE  MBRBPURBFROERIRE - B
AREN2BRERBRRBEA LI 2ETER  RER-_ZEQF+AZ-ZTABTFE
BXEEBERAERISIEESMPLITENTI2T716 EX AR ZRPBFETEE S
RRFSBLERLA o BETEZEERGEARIVURHRBBBEeREZRE > =
i TR RBRRBAEREZREBERATES > AIENKEM—EERLT > BTH
BRFCBBEZT2MBHURAEREUABHE - TRZEEXRB A THBER WK
B MTRBERERS > # BETAEAURZRE2BABREUABENR > B
EARFZBRHAFSTEEESHBEAMEZERERERAL . HETAERELETH
GBRHEERERBEBRRERE -

BMEXBEACFTIHNCEERPUBBREREZBF - ZEBOREHEZTEM
HAp@Eig > RETRENERZRMF2BIBRBESERBRMBKE o EARR I
HBHRERAUBREEREZERE FR-ZFFWETA T UEH TFHBFRTEAL
AZBRHAFELREEETREHRETHERAFARE -

BEEREBUNZRBR

FABREEU MR BRBEHANS I RITRAALMELER > HERT L
HAEBBN T HREMT MR EEREEMFTE > TATUBRBRBESBEE _FFNE
ARBETHERBAZHTHRE - BAREFELSMEZ A MEEABER L SEE
B MABEERCHRENRBL2BHE EZEBFT AR HELER K S EDE
WMHAFEEMRBEZ BT FRNEMBERRENRID -

RZEFNF+ANR > ARFEEIMERZEMBILELZENM - MEX - PEAR
FFE ([FE]) - PP - B - WPY - Bokmgsn - BEAE - B - ®E - XEX
KBRABES



BREUBRGEAREAR BRALAFAZARAAKER K@ EA AN > B AR
REEZHFEAUIREZERE > MBRTEEEZHNIBOUBRE UBAREKRE -
BRAWBREEZRERAFEMA - FFNF LA - +IH -

PHREFE
ARURRTHARE > SRR AEZNT

(i) HWAXAEBCHLRIZHR (THR]) > EEFRZATBETE (EXR
T3 MERBRBTESENRECREERER00TZEE  MAZTX
PR RR > M ERROEEAMSATEE ; &K

(1) BRERFEREHEESBHOOIT ; &K
(iii) U R Ko W BRIR & -

AR EREEBHFRZ2HE  SRFRZTETE((ITETED B _FFNE+
ALABZE-ZZEZWNETA+—HBLE (EREMAFNEER AEALZAR—BBEOGREE
BAXGHARAAZ FHUTERITEG S ZH (RstEE/EEETEET) - @it
BHEEZNFTA T —HHARHATEE TR TR BN R R R TSRS
HREEHE FHAUGIERESRARGZHEZIETESAER _TZENE+A
TZHZHHEAHRN FOARREEELLARECRAOHA-SSOE
+B=+hB-

ERRRAR_FFONFTAZTABRUAMEEREXEALATD ZRHBER
BREUBRBURRSFHFHRE > WBEKATR-ZFEHE+ATNBEERZBAAR
BT BRI REE > R TIZAKFE

FE i 37 B B B = N_FEFNFE+HAMNH « 0015
HEXFEERBRESZHARE A

RBUBAREERT TEGZHESESTHEARFTCBTROZAREHES (W
EFFMEANRAZTHEZAEAZFHEBRERN > T+EEFREFEM - fFil
HRBFEZ2HBE LA - EEARAMEERBUBRA S ZHEBRTERZRG - TE
ZHREEEMASTRE > HAZBREARALFNE -

DERREZER

DR EMTSBRRAEAINREEASRMEROEN FTEMERGZHRE -
HAEALFAMS > u%ﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬂ>%%m%%ﬁ%%%$%%Wﬂ%&é JR A B IR
FTRREZBEHTHALRREFAEERSZMA -




EHLEHF FHERE

BT aEABR AR RERRZATHAE LR > BHHE BT IREELCHEM
AMEHRLSE - ROTEHE - M BXGMREMERER -

BMTNCEELIBER AL TZEEEMARAFARG - B IMAREK LM EZ#E
R (NER 2XRIFABRANEFEERHERZRIT - RELSCTHAAER > U
EHAZREEHAEAN -

EEBEXEHARAFAEFABHNZIAFRARE > HHAEEER R ABRREM
B UHABRRTEAREABEN2RIEMErREmNELBKEREZFERNEMT
ZAE MR KRABAEE AT -

EEEMEBRLQLTA
(AFREMR LA MRLE])
(B L3k : 27)

PATEF © M E R
EEMB L > MBE, KF#+ - LLD> Dssc(EF) s

BREH (8 /) dt A

BRAEE (£ F 4 mg) #HEIE1915%
BEHEHE 5 2E B Pl
HEEm 204%

wIER

BIEHITESF

REHE L > krat
BREE R . OBE> AF M+

BUKE
BE-_SEENFAA=THLXEAR
ZHUBRRE (HERERE 2 ER)
HE

REBMABRLAR(AARNZEEER _FTNFERANE » RRRBEEHE
ZEZNERAZTBIEANEAZPHEREAR RS REEB K010t 2 B 8ITRMA (TH
) BEOI LT _EFMETANARAHMEERLTIRRELM L ZRER - FEFIR

—1—



]
J

oy b




e o KRR D St (AR 7

Contents

Interim Results and Interim Dividend
Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Notes to the Financial Statements

Auditors’ Independent Review Report
Management Discussion and Analysis

Other Information




-

Q3L STVIH3LYIA NOILONYLSNOD HYM M

MiGaul Results and Interim Dividend |

INTERIM RESULTS

The Directors of K. Wah Construction Materials Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to
announce the unaudited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries {collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the six months ended 30th June 2004 as follows:

The Group's turnover for the six months ended 30th June 2004 was HK$617,478,000,
representing an increase of HK$101,895,000 over the corresponding period last year.

The Group's unaudited profit attributable to shareholders for the six months ended 30th June
2004 amounted to HK$11,063,000, representing a decrease of HK$20,080,000 over the
corresponding period fast year.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has resolved to pay an interim dividend of 1 cent per share (2003: 1
cent scrip dividend with cash option), totalling HK$12,817,000 for the six months ended 30th
June 2004 (2003: HK$12,478,000) to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on 4th October 2004. The Board has also
resolved that such dividend should take the form of a scrip dividend with shareholders being
given the option of receiving cash in place of part or all of the scrip dividend. A circular
containing details of the scrip dividend will be sent to shareholders of the Company in due
course.
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I E ] Profit and Loss Statement |

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenues

Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance costs

Share of profits less losses of
Jointly controlled entities

Associated companies

Profit before taxation
Taxation (charge)/credit

Profit after taxation
Minority interests

Profit attributable to shareholders

Interim dividend

Earnings per share

TR T YO R T R AL 4 R

SN R R R LAR LR MR LR S

For The Six Months Ended 30th June 2004

2004 2003
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
2 617,478 515,583
(592,245) (488,378)
25,233 27,205
11,819 12,182
4,496 31,593
(27,405) (27,851)
(5,416) (7,491)
28&3 8,727 35,638
(1,843) (3,619)
4,565 1,523
1,308 341
12,757 33,883
4 (2,034) 1,019
10,723 34,902
340 (3,759)
11,063 31,143
12,817 12,478
HK cents HK cents
6 0.9 2.5

N

¥002 1HOd34 WIHILNI



w

x
=
b
ju oy
[
o
=z
w»
=
X
=
o
=
o
=
=z
=
=
m
ES]
>
g
w
j
£
=
m
o

[l Balance Sheet |

As at 30th June 2004

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Jointly controlled entities
Associated companies
Other non-current assets

Current assets
inventories
Debtors and prepayments
Tax recoverable
Other investments
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Creditors and accruals
Current portion of iong-term loans
Short-term bank loans, unsecured
Tax payable
Dividend payable

Net current assets

Financed by:

Share capital
Reserves

Shareholders’ funds
Minority interests
Long-term loans
Non-current liabilities

Note

10
11

12

30th June 31st December
2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000
802,583 802,153
261,301 237,449

16,963 16,098

286,081 240,727

..... 1366928 1206427
92,960 68,716

508,338 482,310

2,399 8,173

3,731 5,150

78,940 306,354
....... 686,368 870,703
300,219 288,923

10,000 10,000

49,719 80,000

370 601

12,690 —

..., 372998 . 389,524
....... 130 481179
1,680,298 1,777,606
127,103 125,893
1,294,308 1,288,370
1,421,411 1,414,263
147,806 147,891

96,745 200,800

14,336 14,652
1,660,298 1,777,606
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[Tl Cash Flow Statement |

For The Six Months Ended 30th June 2004

Net cash {outflow)/inflow from operating activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities
Met decrease in cash and bank balances
Change in exchange rate

Cash and bank balances at beginning of period

Cash and bank balances at end of period

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
(47,268) 61,564
(44,785) {316,530)
(138,142) 207,730
(230,195) {47,236)
2,781 3
306,354 283,062
78,940 235,857

S
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L] Statement of Changes in Equity |

For The Six Months Ended 30th June 2004

Balance at beginning of the period

Exchange differences arising on transiation of
pverseas operations

lssue of shares upon exercise of share options

Profit for the period

Dividends
Final dividend

Balance at end of the period

Note

11

10 & 11

11

R

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,414,263 1,392,570
2,580 52
6,195 —
11,063 31,143
(12,690) (12,432)
1,421,411 1,411,333
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[T to the Financial Statements |

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of certain properties and investments, and in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. The interim financial information has
been presented in accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 25

“Interim Financial Reporting”, issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. ‘

The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of these financial statements are
consistent with those described in the 2003 Annual Report. These financial statements
should be read in conjunction with the 2003 Annual Report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in manufacture, sale and distribution of construction
materials.

Turnover Operating profit
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Sales of construction materials

Hong Kong 219,610 276,536 3,825 10,245
Mainiand China 397,868 239,047 4,902 25,393
617,478 515,583 8,727 35,638

———
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DTS to the Financial Statements |

3. OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit is stated after crediting and charging the following:

2004 2003
HK$’°000 HK$'000
Crediting .
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 32 205
Interest income 4,868 5,731
Gain on disposal of operating rights — 28,260
Amortisation of negative goodwill 316 316
Charging
Amortisation:
Quarry site development 871 720
Overburden removal costs 8,208 6,898
Depreciation 39,081 32,243
Operating lease rental for land and buildings 6,630 7,167
Royalty 1,979 1,402
Unrealised loss on listed investments 1,419 —
Loss on disposal of listed investments 2,893 —
Cost of inventories sold 538,639 421,532
Unrealised loss on long-term investments — 1,365
4. TAXATION (CHARGE)/CREDIT
2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$'000
Company and subsidiaries
Hong Kong profits tax (42) (531)
Mainland China profits tax (1,270) {(1,133)
Deferred taxation - 3,061
(1,312) 1,397
Jointly controlled entities
Mainland China profits tax {(279) (378)
Associated companies
Hong Kong profits tax (443) —
(2,034) 1,019
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DTS to the Financial Statements |

TAXATION (CHARGE)/CREDIT (Cont'd)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the period. Taxation assessable on profits generated
outside Hong Kong has been provided at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries
in which those profits arose.

DIVIDENDS

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000

2003 Final scrip dividend with a cash option, payable, of

HK1.0 cent per share 12,690 —
2002 Final scrip dividend with a cash option, paid, of

HK1.0 cent per share

Scrip —_ 1,998
Cash - 10,434
12,690 12,432

The Board of Directors declares an interim scrip dividend of 1 cent per share (2003: 1
cent) with a cash option, totalling HK$12,817,000 for the six months ended 30th June
2004 (2003: HK$12,478,000) to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on 4th October 2004. This amount
will be accounted for as an appropriation of revenue reserves in the year ending 31st
December 2004.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$11,063,000 (2003: HK$31,143,000) and the weighted average number of
1,265,589,484 shares (2003: 1,243,208,000 shares) in issue during the period.

The diluted earnings per share is not presented as the exercise of the share options

outstanding as at 30th June 2004 would not have a dilutive effect on the earnings per
share.
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[ to the Financial Statements |

7. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the six months ended 30th June 2004, the Group incurred HK$40 million on
property, plant and equipment and HK$4 million on deferred expenditure.

8. DEBTORS AND PREPAYMENTS

30th June  31st December

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade debtors (note a) 425,709 345,050
Loan to a fellow subsidiary (note b) — 70,000
Other receivable 58,975 29,330
Prepayments 23,654 37,930
508,338 482,310

(@)  The Group has established credit policies, which follow local industry standard.
The Group normally allows an approved credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days
for customers in Hong Kong and 120 to 180 days for customers in Maintand
China. These are subject to periodic review by management.

The aging analysis of the Group's trade debtors based on the dates of the
invoices and net of provision for bad and doubtful debts is as follows:

30th June 31st December

2004 2003

HK$°000 HK$000

9 Within one month 111,180 127,199
Two to three months 170,620 141,138

Four to six months 76,961 57,015

Over six months 66,948 19,698

425,709 345,050
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[T to the Financial Statements |

DEBTORS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd)

(b)  In July 2002, the Group granted a guaranteed unsecured revolving loan facility
of HK$330 million to a fellow subsidiary. The loan carries interest at 2.38% per
annum above three-month HIBOR, with maturity of three years and an option to

extend the maturity for further one or two years.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

30th June  31st December

2004 2003

HK$°000 HK$'000

Trade creditors 164,663 138,266
Other creditors 57,462 62,794
Accrued operating expenses 74,378 82,052
Deposits received 3,716 5,811
300,219 288,923

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade creditors based on the dates of the invoices is as follows:

30th June  31st December

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within one month 70,412 81,864
Two to three months 60,685 38,658
Four to six months 19,564 8,649
Over six months 14,002 8,095
164,663 138,266
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10.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1st January 2004 and 30th June 2004

Ordinary shares

Issued and fully paid:
At 1st January 2004
Exercise ot share options

At 30th June 2004

of HK$0.10 each HK$'000
3,888,000,000 388,800
1,258,934,651 125,893
12,094,000 1,210
1,271,028,651 127,103

The Company operates a share option scheme under which options 1o subscribe for shares in the
Company are granted to selected executives. During the period, no new options were granted
(2003: 20,482,000) and options for 12,094,000 shares (2003: nil) were exercised. At 30th June
2004, outstanding options granted under the scheme are as follows:

Exercise

price per

Exercise period share
HK$

20th May 1998 to 19th May 2008 0.5333
30th December 2000 to 29th December 2009 0.5216
1st March 2004 to 28th February 2013 0.5140

Number of share options
30th June  31st December
2004 2003
10,738,000 12,962,000
19,628,000 25,302,000
16,286,000 20,482,000
58,746,000

46,652,000
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ITEY to the Financial Statements |

RESERVES

At 1st January

Exchange differences arising on translation of overseas
operations

Share premium arising upon exercise of share options
Profit for the period

Final dividend

At 30th June

LONG-TERM LOANS

Bank loans
Secured
Unsecured

Current portion included in current liabilities

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Contracted but not provided for

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,288,370 1,268,249
2,580 52
4,985 —
11,063 31,143
(12,690) (12,432)
1,294,308 1,287,012
30th June 31st December
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
— 20,800
106,745 190,000
106,745 210,800
(10,000) {10,000)
96,745 200,800
30th June  31st December
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
62,495 51,339

—
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To the Board of Directors of K. Wah Construction Materials Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

INTRODUCTION

We have been instructed by the Company to review the interim financial information set out on
pages 2 to 12.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
require the preparation of the interim financial information to be in compliance with the
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 25 “Interim financial reporting” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the relevant provisions thereof. The interim
financial information is the responsibility of, and has been approved by, the Directors.

It is our responsibilities to form an independent conclusion, based on our review, on the interim
financial information and to report our conclusion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

REVIEW WORK PERFORMED

We conducted our review in accordance with the Statement of Auditing Standard 700
“Engagements to review interim financial reports” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. A review consists principally of making enquiries of the
management and applying analytical procedures to the interim financial information and
based thereon, assessing whether the accounting policies and presentation have been
consistently applied unless otherwise disclosed. A review excludes audit procedures such as
tests of controls and verification of assets, liabilities and transactions. It is substantially less in
scope than an audit and therefore provides a lower level of assurance than an audit.
Accordingly we do not express an audit opinion on the interim financial information.

REVIEW CONCLUSION

On the basis of our review which does not constitute an audit, we are not aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the interim financial information for the six
months ended 30th June 2004.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 8th September 2004
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REVIEW OF OPERATION

Turnover and profit attributable to shareholders for the six months ended 30th June 2004 was
HK$617 million and HK$11 million as compared to HK$516 million and HK$31 million
respectively for the corresponding period last year, representing an increase in turnover of
20% and a decrease in profit of 65%. The profit attributable to sharehoiders for the
corresponding period last year included a gain on disposal of operating rights of HK$28 million.
When excluding such gain the profit attributable to shareholders for the current period has in
fact improved as compared to last year.

With the economic initiatives taken by the Central Government, the overall sentiments in Hong
Kong have begun to improve. The economy of Hong Kong is now at its early stage of recovery
and it will gradually feed through all sectors of the society. The construction industry, in
particular, will benefit from the economic recovery. Along such environment the market
condition for construction materials business in Hong Kong is expected to improve gradually.
The Group, however, will continue to maintain a cost efficient operation so as to alleviate the
effect brought about by low market demand situation. On the other hand, the Group has
continued to explore new business opportunities around the area to improve profit contribution.
The Group’s new ready-mixed concrete operation at Daya Bay, Huidong supplying ready-
mixed concrete to the CNOOC and Shell Petrochemical Complex at Huizhou has begun
making profit contribution as planned. The Group’s concrete pile factory at Shenzhen which
commenced operation in February this year has successfully established a market locally and
the products were well received by the customers.

In the mainland market, the unstable raw materials prices in the first half of the year have
affected the performance of our operations. With the introduction of austerity measures by the
Central Government recently, the rapidly rising raw materials prices have begun to stabilize.
As regard to the new projects, all of them were proceeding as planned during the period. It is

envisaged that the Group’s performance will be further enhanced when all these projects
gradually phase into operation.

In respect of technology investment, the Group continues to maintain a balanced investment

portfolio similar to that of last year.

—
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REVIEW OF OPERATION (Cont'd)

Looking forward, the Group will continue its strategy to capture potential opportunities to
expand its products range with high value added, high entry barrier and environmental friendly
nature. On 19th August 2004, the Group has entered into a joint venture contract with
Kunming Steel Group to establish an equity joint venture company in Yunnan, PRC of which
the Group will hold a 30% interest. The joint venture company shall be named Yunnan
Kungang & K. Wah Cement Construction Materials Co. Ltd. for the manufacture, sale, and
distribution of cement and slag and related products. The Group will also seize the valuable
business opportunities bring about by closer economic cooperation among the Pan Pearl River
Delta region.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The financial position of the Group continued to remain strong during the period. The
shareholders’ funds at 30th June 2004 was HK$1,421 million similar to that at 31st December
2003 of HK$1,414 million and the Group's gross assets employed also maintained at
HK$1,680 million as compared to HK$1,778 million at 31st December 2003.

The Group’s liquidity position remains strong and the Group possesses sufficient cash and
substantial banking facilities to meet its working capital requirements and future acquisitions
and investments.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio, defined as the ratio of total loans outstanding less cash balances to total
assets, was at a low level of 4% at 30th June 2004. At 31st December 2003, the gearing ratio
was practically at a debt free level.
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VELELE UL Discussion and Analysis

TREASURY POLICY

The Group continues to adopt a conservative treasury policy with all bank deposits in either
Hong Kong Dollars, United States Dollars or in the local currencies of the operating
subsidiaries, keeping a minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks. All of the Group’s
borrowings are in either Hong Kong Dollars or Renminbi. Forward foreign exchange contracts

~ are utilised when suitable opportunities arise and when considered appropriate, to hedge

against foreign exchange exposure. The Group has not engaged in the use of other derivative
products, which are considered not necessary for the Group’s treasury management activities.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

Ltand and buildings with net book values of HK$229,297,000 (31st December 2003:
HK$231,966,000) have been pledged to secure banking facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has executed guarantees in favour of banks in respect of facilities granted to
subsidiaries amounting to HK$288,240,000 (31st December 2003: HK$291,516,000). At 30th
June 2004, the facilities utilised amounted to HK$154,474,000 (31st December 2003:
HK$108,490,000).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group, excluding associated companies and jointly controlled entities, employs around
1,900 employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Employee costs, excluding Directors’
emoluments, amounted to HK$72 million.

The Group recruits and promotes individuals based on their competencies, merit and
development potential and ensures remuneration packages are competitive. The Group has
implemented a share option scheme for executives from 1991 following approval by its
shareholders for the purpose of providing competitive package and long term retention of
management talents. Likewise in Mainland China, employees’ remuneration is commensurate
with market levels with emphasis on provision of training and development opportunities.

—
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SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the six months ended 30th June
2004. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary companies have purchased or sold any of
the Company’s shares during the six months ended 30th June 2004.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHARE OPTIONS

At 30th June 2004, the interests of each director in the shares of the Company and its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO™)), K. Wah International Holdings Limited, and the details of any right to subscribe
for shares of the Company and K. Wah International Holdings Limited and of the exercise of
such rights, as recorded in the register maintained under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise nofified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies, were as follows:

(@)  Ordinary Shares of the Company

% of issued

Share Capital

Personal Family Corporate Other as at 30th

Interests  Interests Interests Interests Total June 2004
Lui Che Weo 7,868,355 1,447,452 75,778,513 850,514,983%® 935,710,503 73.62
Francis Lui Yiu Tung 2,937 — — 850,514,983@ 850,517,920 66.92
Chan Kai Nang — - — — — -
William Lo Chi Chung 186,000 —_ — - 186,000 0.01
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu 1,861,906 - — 850,514,983 852,376,889 67.06
Joseph Chee Ying Keung 1,350,000 - — — 1,350,000 0.11
Charles Cheung Wai Bun 1,810 — — - 1,810 0.00

Moses Cheng Mo Chi — — — - - _
James Ross Ancell — — — — —_— _
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Share Options of the Company

At 30th June 2004, the particulars of the options held by each of the directors of the
Company, the employees of the Company in aggregate and other participants granted
under the Share Option Scheme of the Gompany or under any other share option
schemes of the Company, were as follows:

Options  Options  Options
held at 1st  granted exercised Options
January during the during the held at 30th Exercise
Date of grant 2004 period period June 2004 price Exercise period

(HKS)
Lui Che Woo " 20th May 1998 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000  0.5333 20th May 1999-
18th May 2008
30th Dec 1999 1,800,000 — — 1,800,000 0.5216 30th Dec 2000—
29th Dec 2009
28th Feb 2003 2,000,000 — — 2,000,000 05140  1st Mar 2004-
28th Feb 2013
Francis Lui Yiu Tung 20th May 1998 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000 05333 20th May 1999-
13th May 2008
30th Dec 1999 1,600,000 — — 1,600,000 0.5216 30th Dec 2000-
29th Dec 2009
28th Feb 2003 1,870,000 - — 1,870,000 05140  1ist Mar 2004-
26th Feb 2013
Chan Kai Nang 28th Feb 2003 110,000 — - 110,000  0.5140  1st Mar 2004-
28th Feb 2013
William Lo Chi Chung — - — - — - —
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu 20th May 1998 600,000 — — 600,000  0.5333 20th May 1999~
' 19th May 2008
30th Dec 1999 1,070,000 — — 1,070,000 0.5216 30th Dec 2000-
29th Dec 2009
28th Feb 2003 1,270,000 — — 1,270,000 05140  1st Mar 2004-

28th Feb 2013

—_
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(b)  Share Options of the Company (Cont'd)

Options  Options  Options

held at 1st  granted  exercised Options Exercise

January during the during the held at 30th price
Date of grant 2004 period period  June 2004 {HKE) Exercise period
Joseph Chee Ying Keung 30th Dec 1993 650,000 650,000 — 05216 30th Dec 2000~
29th Dec 2009
1,000,000  0.5140  1st Mar 2004~
28th Feb 2013

28th Feb 2003 “1,000,000 -

Charles Cheung Wai Bun 28th Feb 2003 300,000 -

|

300,000  0.5140  1ist Mar 2004~
28th Feb 2013

Moses Cheng Mo Chi  28th Feb 2003 300,000 - - 300,000 0.5140  1st Mar 2004~
28th Feb 2013

James Ross Ancell — — — — — —_ -

Employees 20th May 1998 9,262,000 1,924,000 7338000  0.5333 20th May 1999-
19th May 2008
4,488,000 #14,088,000 05216 30th Dec 2000~
29th Dec 2009
28th Feb 2003 13,882,000 — 3,896,000 48,985,000  0.5140  1st Mar 2004-

28th Feb 2013

30th Dec 1999 19,226,000

I

Others 20th May 1998 600,000 ~— 300,000 300,000 0.5333 20th May 1999-
19th May 2008

30th Dec 1999 1,606,000 — 536,000 1,070,000 0.5216 30th Dec 2000-

29th Dec 2009

28th Feb 2003  A750,000 — 300,000 450,000 05140  1st Mar 2004-

28th Feb 2013

*

representing the share options held by Joseph Chee Ying Keung as at his appointment date as director on
15th April 2004

# after reclassification of share options held by Joseph Chee Ying Keung under “Employees” to “Directors”

A after reclassification of share options held by Yip Hing Chung under “Directors” to “Others” following his
retirement as director on 31st May 2004




Share Options of the Company (Cont'd)

LI Information |

Notes:

a. The weighted average closing price of the Company's shares immediately before the dates on which
the options were exercised during the period was HK$0.61. )

b. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates on which
the options were exercised during the period was HK$0.76.

c. The weighted average closing price of the Company's shares immediately before the dates on- which
the options were exercised during the period was HK$0.81.

d. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates on which
the options were exercised during the period was HK$0.84.

e. The option were exercised on the same date and the weighted average closing price of the Company’s

shares immediately before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$0.86.

All options referred to above are subject to a one-year vesting period.

The consideration paid by each grantee for each grant of options is HK$1.00.

Qrdinary Shares of K. Wah international Holdings Limited

Lui Che Woo

Francis Lui Yiu Tung
Chan Kai Nang

William Lo Chi Chung
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu
Joseph Chee Ying Keung
Charles Cheung Wai Bun
Moses Cheng Mo Chi
James Ross Ancell

R e

Personal

Interests

263,644
391,163
100,000
4,639,166
7239

Family
Interesis

7,013,966

Corporate
Interests

37,507,971

Other
Interests

1,236,885,458%
1,236,885,458©

1,236,885,458'%

Total

1,281,671,039
1,237,276,621
100,000
1,241,524,624
7,239

% of Issued
Share Capital
as at 30th
June 2004

64.65
62.41

001
62.62

0.00
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(d)  Share Options of K. Wah International Holdings Limited

Options  Options  Options
held at {st  granted exercised Options Exercise
January during the during the held at 30th price
Date of grant 2004 period period June 2004 (HK$) Exercise period

Lui Che Woo 20th May 1998 1,500,000 - —  1500,000 05586 20th May 1993-

i 19th May 2008
I 30th Dec 1999 1,350,000 - — 1,350,000  0.3600 30th Dec 2000~
: 29th Dec 2009
*‘; 28th Feb 2003 2,000,000 - — 2000000 07200 st Mar 2004~
28th Feb 2013
? Francis Lui Yiu Tung  20th May 1998 1,000,000 - —~ 1,000,000 05586 20th May 1999-
19th May 2008

30th Dec 1999 1,200,000 - — 1,200,000 03600 30th Dec 2000~

29th Dec 2008

28th Feb 2003 1,858,000 - — 1,888,000 07200  1st Mar 2004-

28th Feb 2013
Chan Kai Nang — - - — — —_ -

William Lo Chi Chung — — — — — - —

Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu 20th May 1998 600,000 — — 600,000  0.5586 20th May 1999-
18th May 2008

30th Dec 1999 870,000 - - 870,000  0.3600 30th Dec 2000-

29th Dec 2009

28th Feb 2003 1,269,000 — — 1,269,000 0.7200  1st Mar 2004~

28th Feb 2013

Joseph Chee Ying Keung 29th Dec 2003 *1,000,000 - — 1,000,000 1.300 30th Dec 2003-
29th Dec 2013

‘ Charles Cheung Wai Bun 28th Feb 2003 300,000 — — 300,000  0.7200  1st Mar 2004-
: 28th Feb 2013

Moses Cheng Mo Chi — — - — - _— . -

N
—

James Ross Ancell — — — — - _ -

*

representing the share options held by Joseph Chee Ying Keung as at his appointment date as director on
15th April 2004.
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75,778,513 shares in the Company were held by Best Chance Investments Ltd.,
which was controlled by Dr. Lui Che Woo.

K. Wah International Holdings Limited was interested in 846,625,308 shares in
the Company representing more than one-third of its issued share capital held
by a wholly owned subsidiary of K. Wah International Holdings Limited.
1,236,885,458 shares in K. Wah International Holdings Limited representing
more than one-third of its issued share capital were held by the discretionary
trusts established by Dr. Lui Che Woo as founder. In addition, one of the said
discretionary trusts was interested in 3,889,675 shares in the Company.

Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu, as
either direct or indirect discretionary beneficiaries of the discretionary family
trusts, are deemed to be interested in those shares in K. Wah International
Holdings Limited and those shares in the Company held by the trusts and in
those shares in the Company in which K. Wah International Holdings Limited
was interested as aforesaid.

34,503,760 shares and 3,004,211 shares in K. Wah International Holdings
Limited were respectively held by Best Chance Investments Ltd. and Po Kay
Securities & Shares Company Limited both of which were controlled by Dr. Lui
Che Woo.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2004, none of the Directors of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the

SFO).

N
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
At 30th June 2004, the interests of every person (not being a director or chief executive of the
Company) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register kept under section 336 of

the SFO were as follows:

% of Issued Share

Number of Capital as at
Name Ordinary Shares 30th June 2004
Best Chance Investments Lid. 75,778,513 6.0
K. Wah International Holdings Limited 846,625,308 66.6
HSBC International Trustee Limited 842,969,433 (Note) 66.3

Note: HSBC International Trustee Limited is the trustee of the discretionary trusts which hold 842,969,433 shares in the
Company.

There was duplication of interest of:

(i) 850,514,983 shares in the Company between Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu
Tung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu. Among these shares, 846,625,308 shares were
also interested by K. Wah International Holdings Limited and 842,969,433 shares were
also interested by HSBC International Trustee Limited;

(i) 75,778,513 shares in the Company between Dr. Lui Che Woo and Best Chance
Investments Ltd.; and

(i)~ 1,236,885,458 shares in K. Wah International Holdings Limited between Dr. Lui Che
Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2004, the Company had not been notified by any
persons who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the SFO.



e

e

:
3
&
¢
]
=
s
s
g
K]
3
3
3

Mnformation |

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET OF AFFILIATED COMPANIES

As at 30th June 2004, the Group had given financial assistance and guarantees to financial
institutions for the benefit of its affiliated companies amounting to, in aggregate, approximately
10.7% of the Company's market capitalisation.

In compliance with Chapter 13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the combined balance sheet of the affiliated companies as at
30th June 2004 is set out as follows:

Group’s

Combined attributable

balance sheet interest

HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current assets 256,548 86,258
Current assets 160,243 53,879
Current liabilities (34,574) (11,622)
382,217 128,515

Share capital 94,079 31,631
Reserves 96,935 32,593
Amounts due to shareholders 191,188 64,287
Non-current liabilities 15 4
382,217 128,515

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Having been reviewed by the Company's Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Group's
interim financial information for the six months ended 30th June 2004 was reviewed by the

Audit Committee (the “Committee”). Regular meetings have been held by the Committee which
meets at least twice each year.
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CLOSE OF REGISTER

The register of members will be closed from 27th September 2004 to 4th October 2004, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for
the dividend, shareholders must ensure that all transfers together with the relevant share
certificates are lodged with the Company’s Registrars in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:00 p.m. on 24th
September 2004.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

None of the directors is aware of any information that would reasonably indicate that the
Company is not, or was not for any part of the six months ended 30th June 2004, in
compliance with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

By Order of the Board
Steven Tong Kui Nam
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 8th September 2004

Registered Office:

29th Floor, K. Wah Centre
191 Java Road

North Point

Hong Kong

Website: www.kweml.com

As at the date of this report, the executive directors are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu
Tung, Mr. Chan Kai Nang, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung, Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu and Mr.
Joseph Chee Ying Keung. The independent non-executive directors are Dr. Charles Cheung
Wai Bun, Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi and Mr. James Ross Ancell.
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